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Directors' Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited and its
subsidiaries for the 6 month period ended 31 December 2018.

The Shareholder of the company has agreed to take advantage of the reporting concessions available to it under
section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993. Accordingly, there is no further information to be provided in this Annual
Report other than the financial statements and auditor's report.
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e

Director Director

Thevesa 44 w:lj Kob M Doviald

‘Annual Report
For the 6 month period ended
31 December 20]8




Contents

Corporate Governance

Income Statement.

Statement of Comprehenslve Income

Statement of Changes In Equity

Statément of Financial Pesttion

‘Statement of Cash Flows

Notes ko the Financial Statamients

1

o~ ;e & Wi

= 3

12

36

Statemant of Significant Accounting Policies
Actuarial Policies and Methods:

Sources of Profit

Premium Revenue

Investment and Other Reveriue

Reinsurance Commission

‘Clalms Expense

Dther Qperating Expenses:
Auditor's Remuneration

Taxation

Imiputation Credit Account
Sécurittes

{Cash and Cash Equivaiehts
Principal Subsidiaries

[ntangibile Assets.
Trade &nd Othier Recelvables
Retirement Benefit Surplus

Life insurance and Life Invesimant Contract Liabifitles,

Deferred Taxation Liability

Trade and Other Payables

Contributed Capital

‘Capital Management

Related Party Transactions and Balances

‘Share based Compensation

Directors and-Key Manageimant Personnel

Leasing Commitments and.Capitat Commitments

Fair Velue of Financial Instriiments

Categories of Financial lnstruments:

Asset Quality

Disaggregated Informatian

Risk Management Falicies

Derivative Fipancial Instrumants:

Maturity Analysis of Firancial Liabilities
Fungs Under Managemant and A‘cl_rn'fnis"tra't_iqn
Commitments and Coniingencies

Events after the Reporting Period

tndependent Auditor's Report
Appolntéd Actuary's Report

18
20.
2
2
21
21
22
22
22
23
23
23
24
24
24
25.
25
26
27
27
28
29
30
kY
32
32.
34
35
36
38
42.
43
43
43
a4
45
a7



Corporate Governance

T'h_e. Bo‘_ard places great’ fmportance on. the governance of Sovefeign Assurance Company Limited (SACLY and its subsithanes (together, fhe.
Group). Performance and ¢orpliance are both essential for geod governance.

Reviews of the Board's perforiance arid its policies and practices are carried out reguiarly. These reviews identify where ymprovements, tan
be made-and assess the quality and effectiveness of the industry ang cempany information:made available to directors,
The principal features of SACL's corporate govarnance ars:

» & separate Board Aldit an_d:Ri'sk Compmittee {the BARC): Al non-executive directors are members of the BARC and the
chairperson of the BARC must bé an independent director other than the chairperson of the Board;

* the Chief Executive Qfficer does not participate it deliberations-of élthior {He Bdard or the Board Remuneration
Committee (BREW), affectinig hls positian, reminzratlon.or perfarmance; and

- there are established criteria for the appointmant of new directors and external consuliants are engaged in the search for:
new independent directars.

The guidetines for licensed insurers issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) recommend that;
- the Board will have a minimum of-two directors;
- the'Chair will be an independant, nar-executive directer;
+ &t least tivo directors willbe ordinarily resident in'New Zeaiand; and
- .t least half of the directors will be Indepenident.

The Board satisfies these requirerents,

New directors are invited to participate in an induchion pragramme, All directors regularly consider issues, trends: and. challengas ralevant to
the’ Gmup' the financial ser vices: industry-and the economy.:

The Board has adopted a charter ahd code.6f gthics for directors. The philosophy uhderlying. the.Board's. approach to corporate goyernance
is-consistent-with the ethical standards required of all employees of the Group.

The Group has |mplememed and complies viith a fit-and proper. pohcy -and frocess in relation to determining the appropriatengss of its
directars and relevant officers.

Nor-executive directors da not participate ih'any of tha Group's i'r:cen_'tive.p!_ans,
Change In Financtal YearEnd Date.

The Group was acquired en 2-July 2018 by MA Thtérnational Lifnted, a subsidiary of AIA Group Limited (AfA), The Group was granted
approval by the nfand Revenue Departiant to enabie it fo. change its financial year end date from 30 June to 31 December. The change in
year-end enables the Group to align its financial yvear end dale with that of-A1A; The granting of trus relief means that these asudited financial
statements are-for a six (6 month period ended 31 Decermber 2018 (the pariod’), whéreas.the comparatwe period presented is for the twelve-
month period ended. 30. June-20i8- (‘the-year). Therafore, the cufrent: -and prior periods presemed are'not ennrelv comparable. Hereafter,
-the Group will report Its results.as normal with.respect fo.a 31 December financial year snd.

Change in Board Composition

Foliowirig acauisition by AlA, the composition bf the Board.6f SACL ¢hanged, The Chief Executive Officer (Mr N.S. J. Stanhope) continues as a
dirgctor with the remaining. directors prior t0°2 July 2018 resigning.. Five new girectors of SACL were appoirited as of 2 Julv 2018, The new
directers are Mr D.Y.S. Mu, Mr RS: McDonald, Wr W, Lisle, Ms TE. Gatturig and Ms EM, Fivnn The mew directors were appomted after
-completing an assessiment that éach dicector was a fit and proper persan to hold.this roie and the approval of the. RBNZ,

Existing Board Comniftees have continuad as déscribed with tHe mambership as foliows:
~ The BARC cornprised of: Mr.R.S. MeDonald; Ms T.E. Gattung-ahd Ms.E.JJ. Fiynn.
- The BREM comprised of: g T.E. (Sattung, Ms EM.L-Flynn and-r DY.S. Mu
Committees of the Board

The Board has delegates specific powers.and responsibilities to committees of the Board. and to mianagemenit, Key decisions. made. by the
Board committees ara reportad to the full. Board. Manaqement recommands key dacisions.to’ the Board for, approval

There &re two permanent Board compmiitiess, being the BARC and the BREK. Both commitiess have their awn charters. Other commitiees
‘may be formed to.carry aut specific deiegated tasks when required. An independent directar chairs each ¢ommittae.

Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC)
The rofe of the BARC is to:

1. Assist the Board in discharging its responsibility to exercise due tare, diligence and <kill in relaticn to finencial repérting dnd ‘contral,
conformance with !egal requirergnts affectlnq 1he- Grcup fhe identification and pruderit management of the risks:to.which the. Group s
or may beconie subject, and the-good governance of the Group mrefation to those mas ters, mcludlng the oversight-of:

“the {ntegrn:y of external flnanc:ai-report;ng:

+ fingncial mgnagement;

- internal cantrol systems;

* accounhing pohcy and prachice:

- the Tisk management framework and monitoring compliance eath that frameworic

- related party trans_ag:tiuns:

Sovereign Assurance Company Lisited and Subsidianes 1




Corporate Governance (continued)

+ compliance wiihi applicable 1aiws and standards) and

- without- E|m|t|nq the generahty of the forgomg. complisnce with RENZ standards refating t0 external financial reparting.

Ensure the quatity. credrblllty and objecmrlty of the: accountmq pracess; finandial reporlmg and reguiatory disclosire.

Qversee anid monitor the peiformance of the internal and-external auditdrs, The BARC Has approved an External Auditor Services Policy,
That poficy relates to the engagement of the exfernal audit firm for.non-audit. whrk. The objective of the palicy s to avoid prejudiceto
the ‘independence of the auditor and prevent undue reliance by the auditor on revenue tromthe Group, The paiicy ensures the auditer
does not:.

~ assume the'role of managernent;

- hetome ah-advocate for their own client; or

- auditWwork that comprses a direct output of their Swn professicnal expertise.

Under the policy the auditor wll.l not provide the following services:.

+ bookiesping oF servi¢es relating to accounting records;

- - financial informatton systems design &nd implémentatiory;

+ appraisal or valuation and-farness opinions:

« gttuarial advisory services,

+ internal audit outspurcing services;

+ advice on deal structuring.and related documentation;

- [_é_x_pié_nnir;g and. st'rate_géc services;

+ acting as a broker-dealer, promoter oF underwriter;:

» “jegal services: or

- exacutive recruitment o extengive human resource function,

4, Provide a structured reporting’ line for memai audnt and ensure the. ohjsctivity and independence of interrial atidit. The Head of internal
Audit (AL and NZyreports tathe BARC through _1ts chaltperson.

5. Consider any AIA policy refevart to the roleof the' BARC and, if deemed apprbpriate, ‘adopt or recommend that the Board adopt (as.
applicable) the policy 85 8 policy-of the Group:.
6. Act asaformal forum for free and.open communication betwsen the Board, the'internal and externat autlitors,-and management,
7. ‘Deal with any other matter which the Board may from time -'to-_tim‘e detegate i_cr.t_he_-BAR(;._
Board Remuneration Commilttee: (BREM)
The role of the BREM 510 assist the:Board in discharging its resp0n5|b|llt1es in ralation to.
- thé selection, remuneiation, eduzation and evaluation of directors:
- the selection, remuneration and évaluatibn of management; and’
' po'i'Ic:es relating to dlverslty forthe Board and-management

Execuiives-are rewardéd with a mix of fixed remuneration and incentives. Total remuneration Is intended to be market competitive when
compared aqatnst similar rotes .at pear urgamsat:ons. as well &3 rerlectinq posit*on responsibilities, individusl competencles, experianze and
perfarmance,

Exetutives' incentive rémunerdtion is based on a sef.of clear objectives that will drive sustanable performance. The-objectives;
. reflect the Group's stratagic prioritles;
- are'based on bofh financialandnan-financiat measures that are set at the beginning of the performaricé period; and
. discourage excessive risk taking. '
Directors and Ofticers’ Llability nsurance
The Greup-has effected lidbillty insUrance for its directars and pfficers.
Diversity and Inclusion _
The Group is committed to diversifly.and inclusion across its business. THe Group's diversity and inclusion priorifies are.designed to ensura
that: '
- the Group's workforce and leadership is reflective of both the cornmunities in which the-Group operates and its customer base; and.

- the Gfoup has & culture’in winch diversity is encouraged, uhderstood, respected, valued and leveraged s0.that talenfed people can
thrive and the Group's customers and repustation both benefit,

Th_e- Group's diversity and incluston pr_lo;ltte_s are:
+ diversity i leadership:
¢ inclusive culiure; and
+ you can b you.
Asat De:ember 2018, 49% of all senior leadérship roles and atove (permanent and fulltime toles of the Executive Leadership. Tear and

thelr direct report) were heid by women. Sdverelgh has a target that 5056 of ail serior leadership roles and abave will be heid by women by
2020,

Talent souréing processes have heen reviewed{o ensure that-support is given.to the diversity and inélusion priorities.

-Sovereign Assuregnce'Campany Limited.and Subsidiaries.



Income Statement

‘6'monthsto 12 months to

Ry Dahemﬁe 30June
: ' 201"

Revenue
Prermium revende 4 364 .
Leds: Rénsurance expense 4 R 15} (48)
Net Premilum Revenue 187 669
investrént revenus 5 4 142
Other revenue 5. B 3
Reinsurapce ¢ommission & 750" -
Total Operating Revenue _ Bag . 514
EXpenses
g!éims,'.expgn's_e 7 224 305
Less: Reinsurance recoveries 7 (89) 43). -
Net Clalms Expanse 135 352
Gther operating expenses 8 1é4_- 278
Life insurance contract liabilities - Increase/(decrease) 18 638 (24)
Life investrment contract liatilities - {decrease)/incresse - SO {23} 56
Total Expenses 914 663
Net Profit before taxation 35 151
Taxation expense 1D 25 . 44
Net Proflt after taxation 3 10 _ 107 _

Statement of Comprehensive income

Net Brofit after taxation’ . 10 107

‘Other cainprehensive Income/{dxpense), net of taxation

itomis that wili not be reclassified to the Income Statement:

Remeasurement of dehnad benefit plans hat of tax - 1
Total other comprehensive income/(expense), nét of taxation . - 1
Tatal comprehensive Incorme- 10 108

Thiese statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes on fagss B ta 44 and the Independént Auditer's-Report from pages.45 15 48,

i

Pwe
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the six.months ended 31 December '?_Q'!B

Ralance at 1 July 2018
‘Net Profit-after taxation

Other compreherisive income, nef.of taxation:

fotal camprehenslve Income for the-slx months ended 3t December 2018

Ordinary. dividend paid 21

‘Balance as at 31 December 2018

For the year ended 30-June 2018

Balance at 1 July 2017
Net Profit after taxation-

Other comprehensive expense, net of taxation

Total comprehensive (ncoma for the year ended 30 June 2018
Ordinary dividend paid 21

Balance as.at.30 June 2018

540 205 745
- 10 10
- 10 10
- (460} . (460)
540 (245) 295
540 228 768
: 107 67
- 1 i
- 108 108
. (130) (13n
540 205 745

These statements sre to be read In conjunétion with the notes on pages &to 44 and the indapendent Auditar's Report from pages 46 to:46é,

Eh

pw
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Statement of Financial Position

5 milliens

Assets

Cash anid tash efuvalents

Trade and othir recéivahles
Securities

Oerwative asnets

Liabiyties coded under rensurance
Current taxation asset

Mant and equipment

Intangibie assets

Retirement beneht surplus

Totat assets

Liabilities.
Trade and.other pavables

Liabtibies arising from reinsurance contracts’

Cerwvative kahihties

Lrie investment contract liabiibes
Lifg'insurance contract Kabiities
Deferred tavahon liabilly

Total labilitles

Shareholders' Equity
Conhtributed camtal
Retained earnings

Total sharchalders' equity

Tata! [fabl(i$les and shareholders® equity

The Board of Directors authorsed:these financial statemeénts for 1ssue on 18 Marzh 2002

Directar

Dirgctor

‘Note,

2

O

31.Decamher 30 June
2018 2018

359 481
102 (o]
1,821 1,600
2
33 10
7 3
14 15
19 15
1 4
_ 'Bagg 2184
134 104
708 .
- 4
oqo T
26 73
549 528.
‘2,063 1,418
540 540
{245) 205
295 745
2,358 2164

‘fi_'i'ese staternents are to be reac.in conjunction with the notes onpages & to 44 ani-the Indegendent-&yditor's Rebort from pages 45.(0 46

Al

pwe
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Statement of Cash Flows

Smonths to

. 12months to
A Pecember

G Jun

Cash Hows from operating acfivities
Lash éras provided fram;

Prermum and deposit premaum receipts n 136
Divident receipts 7 1®
Interast receipts 27 50
Reinsurance receipls 798 38
Manag_e_ment'fees and commussion receints 1 -
1,204 836
Cash was applied to:
Clarns, surrenders and maturibes payments 270 499
Comemission payments 74 152
Payments to supipliers and employeds a0 122
Tax paymenis 8 316
Reinsurance Gremiums 153 _ 48
586 a7
Met cash flows from operating activities _' 618 an

Cash flows from investing activities-
Lash was provided from:.

Proceeds from sale of securhies 241 3z
Praceeds.from safe of intangible assats : - 3
24t 139

Cashwas apphed {o:
Purchasg of sequrities 495, 233.
Purchase of plant and equipment - 1
Purchase.aind-dévelopmant of intangible sssets 5 3
Nat settiement of foreign exchange contracts 1 5
' 5t _ 242
"Het cash flows from Investing achivitles y {260 BT

Cash flows from financing activities
‘Cash was applied to:

Dividends paid 460 131
Met cash flows from financing agiivitles. . (4603 . {131)

Summary of movements in cash flows

‘Net decrease in cash and cash equivatents {102) s

- Add: cash andcash equivalents.al beginning'of pertod 461 536

-ash and cash equlvalents at.end of parlod 359 461

" These staternents are to.be raad in-cnnjunct:ion wllﬁ-the'no_tes.on pages & to 44 and the independent Auditor's Report from pages 45 to 46 @

pw
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Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Reconcillation of nat profit-after taxation to net cash flows froin opefating actlvitles

Net Profit aftér taxation 0 107

an-cash [tems included In net profit after taxation

Loss/{gain} on disposal of intangible assets - {3)
Arrgrtlsation and depreciation 2 5
HNet reafised and unrealised gains, a3 (71}
Nori-¢ash dividends raceived 3y ¢o}
[Increasef{decrease) iniifeinsurance tontract hiabilities recognised in the Income Statement 638 (24}
(Decreaselincrease in life iivestment contract-liabllities recognised i the Income Statement 23}, 54

Movements in assets and Habilities

“Trade and other receivables - increase {40} (12}
Net income tax liability - mcrgase 16 8
Trade and other payables - increase/{decrease) . 27 2
Devrease In Iife_ investment contract habilities recognised inthe statement of financial position {41) {B5)
Met cash flows from operating activities. 618 (30
These statements are'to be read in conjunétion with the nates.on-pages & io.da‘i.an_d the Independent Auditor's 'R'epor.i from pages 45 {o 46, m@%

Pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the'six months ended 31 Bacember 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies

Genéral Accounting Palicies:

SACL s registered under the Companies Act 1992 and 5. domiciled and. incorparated in New Zealand, The financial statements
presented are those for SACL 3nd ifs subsidiaries, SACL is 100% owned by Aik Sovereign. Limited. The ultimate parent is AlA Group
Lirnited (AlA). SACL's registered oftice is 74 Taharote Road, Takapuna, Auckland, 0622, SACL's and the Group's principal ‘areas of
husiness are life msurance and Iivestment management..

on-21 September 2017, Commonwealth Bank of Australia {CBA) announced the sate-of 100%.0f its fife insurance businesses in Ausiralia
and New Zealand. of which SACL wag a part, to AlA International Limited, a subisidlary of AtA Group Limited (AIAY for-AUD $3.8 biliign.
The sale agreement. includes a 2C-year distribution agreemeant with: AIA Tor the provision of Uife snsurance products:to CBA and ASB
custoriers-in Australia apd New Zealand, Thie New Zealdnd sale completad on 2 July 2018, Accordingly, SACLS now a pari of the AlA
Groupat the reporting date and these financial statements are presented on this-basis.

The Group applled to-the Infand Reyenue Department to change its balance date from 30 June to 31 Decemnber 1o enablé it to align w'lth
its new owner AlA.. The change in.balance. date means that this financial period i5 a‘transitional one, being for the peried from 1 July
2018 td 31 December 2018 (i.e. six months). Hereafter. the Groug will réport its results for the 12 months to 31 December-financtal year
end:

SACL is & reporting entity under the Finsncial Markets Conduct-Act 2013, Thie firfiancial statements Rave been prepared in accordance:
with the Finantial Markets Conduct Act 2013.

The financtal-statements-of the Group have been prepared | in accordance with Gengrally Accepied Actounting Practice.n New Zealand
(NZ GAAP). They comply with Inférnaticnal Financial. Reporting Standards (GFRS) and the Mew Zeaiand Equivalents'to International
f-‘lnanoal Reporting Standards (NZ {FRS), other ‘New Zealand accounting standards snd - authoiitative notices that are. applscabfe to
entities that-apply.NZ IFRS, as appropriste for for- proht entities..

Comparaiwe mformatton has been reclassified or restated to efisure consistency with presentation in the curfent reportlng period.
These reclassifications and restaternents haveno fmpact anunet profit atfter.faxstion, '

The fmanr:lal statements. |ncluc|e two new standards being applied for the first time. _The.adopiion of the two new standards does not
have & materiat impact to the Group.. Thefélevant néw standards are NZ IFRS 9 ahd NZ IFRS15.. These are discussed below.

« NZ IFRS'9 financial instriments addresses the classification; measurement and récognition of financlal dssets a_n;l financial
liabHities. The complete version of NZ IFRS 9 was issued in September 2014. it replaces the quidance in NZ IAS 39 Frnancisl
Insiriments: Recognition and Measurement that rélates to fhe classification and measurement-of financial instrurignts.

NZ IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the rilked meéasurement nmiode! and establlshes three’ primary rneasurément categories for
financial assets:amorflsed cost, fair value through other comprehensive ncome and fair value through profit of loss, The basis of
classification. depends on the-entity's business maodel and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset: There is
now a new expectéd crect (0sses model that réplaces the incurred loss impairment model for firancial assets used in NZ IAS 39,

For financfal liabilities, the standard retains most 6f the NZ 1AS 39 requirements, The main charige #s that, in cases where-the fair
wvajue optfon Is- taken.for financial liabiities, part.of the fair value change due to an entltys own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive incorne rathes than profit or loss. unless.this creates an accounting mismatch. In addition; the new standard revises,
the hedge accounting model t6 mare Ciosaly align- With the’ -entity's sk rmanagemerit strategies. The interriational Accounting
Standards Board {IA58) made further changes to two areas of IFRS 9. Financial assets contalriing prepayment features with
negative compensation can beé measurdd at amorttsed rost or at- fair value: thraugh other comprehensive income if the cash ﬂow
reprasents solely payments-of principsl and interest. Non-substantial modifications ér exchange of financial liabilities that.de nof.
result in deregognition wilthe required to be-recognised in pmﬁ: orloss.

The stendard is mandatorily. effective for financial periods beginning on.or after 1 January 2018 {except for prepayment features
with negative compensation and maditications: or exchange. of ftnanctai habmhes that do not resutt In detecagnition which vaill
-become effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2Q19).

Adoption cf_:-N'Z'_u_-'RS % has had no impact on the Group, other; than additiona! disclosure requirernents and changes in presentation.

» NZIFRS 15 Revenue frorn Conlracts with Custorners addresses récognition of revenue from contracts with customers. NZ #FRS.15
replaces the currént revenue recognition guidance in NZ IAS-18 Revente and NZ IAS Tt Consiruction Contracts and is applicable fo
-all.entities with reveaue Trom cantracts with.customers, it sels put a five-step model for revenue:recognition 1o deplct the transter.
of promised qoods ar servicesto customars-in a@n afmount that refiects fhe consideration, to whith the-enfity expetts to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.. This standard applies to the Group's reporhng perlcd commencing . July- 2018
Imglerentation of NZ IFRS15 has had mlmmai irpact on the financial position of the Group as only a small portion of the Group's’
revénue s within the scopie of the- hew standard gwen mast of the Group revenue recognition is detérmined by NZ IFRS 4
Insurance Contract.

Under NZ IFRS 15 the Group now repgrts a new.revenug tem-under gther révenus, favesiment fees for investrment linked prodivels. .
This wias previousty reported as a compongnt of iife investrment Zontract kabilities ¢n the Income Statement,

Sovereign Assurarice Company LImited.and Subsidiaries 8



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the six manths ended 31 December: 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

General Accounting Policles: (continued)

Thie following pew standards relevant fo the Grolp have been issued. The Group does riot intend-to apply these standards until their

effective:dates.

« NZIFRS15.Le3ses replaces the current-guidance in NZ IAS 17 Leases. Under MNZ IFR3.16. a contract is, or contains, a:/gase- if the
contract convays the right Hs) contro¥ fheuse of an identified assel for & period of fime ins exchange for consideration. NZ IFRS 16
now Fequires @ jesses 1o recoanise a lease. Etablllt\/ reflecting future lease payments ang a ‘right-of-usa (ROU) asset’ for virtually all
lease contracts, Included is an optional exempbion for certain Shorizterm legses and leases of lowvalue assets; haowever, this
exemption can only be applied by iessees. This standard: is effective for reporting. permds beginning on of atter't. January 2019,
Early adeption is only parmiitted following adoption-of NZ (FRS.15 Revenue from Contracts with Cistomners.

The-Groiap. has assessed the effects of .adopting. NZ IFRS 16 ori-its financial statements and the impaet is niot‘considered to be
material. NZ-IFRS.16 requires fessees to mitially recogmise 3 lease liability for the-obligation to make lease payments and ROU asset
for the right to s the uiderlying-asset for: the term of the fease term, The'lease-bability is measured &t the present value of the
iease payment to be made over the leask term, The asset will tHen be subject to depreciation, while interest will be recogrised on
the lease liability aver the lease term.

NZ IFRS 16 préscribés two tfansitional methods for igssées io implement the néw standard: Under fne full retrospactive approach,
lessees must restate comparative information. Under the cumulative catch up approach, fessees do not need fo restate
corparative information. but are requiréd to adjust.the opering value of equity. for the accurnulative effect of initially applying NZ
iFRS 16 &t the initial date of application. The Group wilt adopt the cumulative catch up approach in alignmant with AlA. This
method-aliows for a number-of more specific transitional requirements-and optional refiafs.

‘Note 26 meludes details of existing and undiscounted lease commitments, which provides.an indication of the eypected ROU and
lisbility tha wili be re’co‘gm'sec’i in tha Statement of Finantial Position.

s NZIFRS7 /nsurance Contracts was lssued in Aug 2017 as & replacement for N2 FRS 4 insurance Conlrectsand is mandamry for
financial YeaTs. cnmmencar‘g anvor afier 1 Jan 2021 !t reguires & current measurement megel whiere ‘estimates are re-measyred
each reporting period, Contracts are measured usig the buiiding blocks .

: dlscounted proaability-weighted cashilows

- an.explicet risk ad;ustment and
» a cohiractual service rnargin (CSM) representing the Unearnggd profit of the contract which is- recognlsed 85 .FBVenUR over the
coverage period.

FThe'standard aflows 2'chioice between recognising ehanges in cistount rates eitfier in'the income statement .or drrecilf ity other
comprehensive income, The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial asseta under NZ IFRS 9, An optional,
simplified. premium: allocatmn agproach is-permitted. for the liability-of the remalning coverage for shart duration contracts that
are oftenvwritten by non-life insurers,

Therg 18 & modification of the general measurement model talled the 'varigble fee approach: far certain contracts wntten- by life
nsurers where palicyholdars share inthe retutns from underlying items. When applying the variable fee approach the éntity's
stiare of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in the-contractual service margmn, The resuis of insurers using
this mmodel are theréfore likely to be lss volatile than'under the general model.

The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that i issye insurance contratis of
investrent contracts with discretionary participation features. The Group i§ currently assdssing the effect of adopting NZ FRS 17
on its fmanmal statements.

Thie Group approach to-adopting this standard willalign with that taken by its ultimate parent company, AIA.
Basls of Preparation

‘The mdasurement base adopted is historical tost, modified by the fait value measurement of finantial instrurhents; incliding derivative
contracts, at fair value through the income Statement. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial vear. excent-as noted abioive,

Critlcal Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Preparation-of financiat statements requires management to make estimates:and: assumgtions that. affect the amounts reported in the
fmanctal statements.and accompanymg notes. The-Group makes- estsmates and-assymptions that affect the' reporied amounts of assets;
liabilities, and revenue and expenses, All estimates are. based on management's: knowlédge of current facts and circumnstances,
-assumptions -hased- on that knowledge and predictions: of future events and actions. Actuat results can always differ from those
‘estimates, possibly significantly,

The areas wherea high: deqree of judgement is applied by management that have the most significant effect on amounts recognised-n
tne financral staternents are the valuation of; financial nsirumenis (rafar notes 1f) and 27), Jife nsurdnce contract iiabilitias and life
investment contract fiabilities (refer nates 11k) and 18}, mtanqmle assets (réfer notes Ithy and 15} and deferrad-taxaticn liabyity (refer
notes 1) and 19). Uncertanties exist with respect fo the inferpretation of ‘complex tfax requlations for life Insurance acfivities. Given the
complexify of lifg insurance tax legislation and the assumiptions invalved, adjusiments to income tax expense in future penods may be
reqwred

ems that are -.c_onsider__.edgarti_cu[ar_ly se_n_éitlve to changes.n estimates.and assumptions. and the relévant accounting poficids dre those
which relate. to-product.classification, irisurance contract hebdities, deferred-acquisitioh and origination costs. liatiity adaquacy testing,
fair value measurement, impairment of financlel assets-and impairment.of goodwill and ather intangible assets.

Pwe
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For-the'six moenths erided 31 December 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Poficies (continued)

Critical Accotinting Estimates and.Judgements (continued)
Proguct Classification
The Group issues contracts that iransfer Insurance:risk or Financial risk or both, Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant [Asurance risk, while fnvestment. contracts are those cantracts without sngnmcant insurance risk. The Group exercisss,
significant Iudgement to determinz whather thereis a scenario {other than those. Ia‘.kmq cammercial substancelinwhich aninsured
event would reguire the-Group to pay significant additional benelits to /s customers. in the event thé Group rustpay Signthcant
additional benefits 16 its customers, the contract is accounted for as aninsurance contract The judgements exercised in determmmg
the level of insyrarice risk in product classtfication affect the amounts recognised in'the financial staterments asinsurance and

invéstment contract liabilities and deferred acuisition: and ungmatlon costs, The accouinting palicy on product classilication is teser bed
in-note 1),

Insuranice Contract Lisbilities

Forcontracts with.an explicit acceunt balante, suchas universal Ife-and wit-hnked contracts, insurance contract siabilities represent
the arcumulation value, which represents prem:ums received-and Investrment retirris credited to thepolicy less deductions for
l‘nortalltv and morbidify costs.and expense charges Siqnmcant :udgement is exercised in making’ appropriate estimates.of gross profits
whith are based én historital and anticipatéd future.experiences. these éstimates:are regularly reviewed by the Group.-

The Group accolnts for-insurance cantract liabilties for participating business writzen in pammpatlng funds by estatlishing a liability for-
the present value of guarantesd benefits-less estimated future nel premiums {g be collacted from pohcyholders in addition, -ari
insurance liatility.is -recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would.be allocated to- paltcyholders
assurriing afl rele\rant surpius at the date of the. cansolidated staternent of financial position were to be declared as a policyhdider
dividend based upon applicable requigtions, Establishing sheseliabiliftes requiresthe exercisa ¢f sngrﬂﬂcant judgernant. In addition, the
assumptmn that all retevant performancs 15 declared as.a po[lcyholder dividend may not be borpe out in practice. The Group accounts
for other participating business by establishing & Hability for the present: value of quaranteed benefits and non-guaranteed participation,
less estimated future net pramioms tobe:coliectedfrom pelicyholders.

The judgements exercised in'the valuation of insurance contraci affect the amounts recognised in zhe financial statements.as insurance
contract benefits and insurance contract iabilities. Furthisr detalls of ihe related accountlnq [polity, key risk and varlables, and the-
sensifivities of assumptions-to the kéy variabies in réspact of insurarice coniract lisbiltties are provided.in notes 1, 2. 18 and 30.

Fair value measurement of financisl assels:

“The Group determines the fair values of financial assets traded in active Mmarlets using giicted bid prices.as §f eath reporting date: The
fair values-of financial assets that are not fraded in active markets are typically determinad using avarfety of other vahation
techpigues, such as prices observad inrecent transactions-and values obtained from-current bid prices bf comparable nvestments,
Maré judgement is used intmeasuring the fair value of financial assets for whith market observable prices are not availablé of arg
avallable only mfrequently,

Changes.inthe fair valve-of financial asséts held by the Group's participating funds affect not only the viiue of financial assets but are.

-also reflected in carresponding movements in Insurance nd investment contract liabitities, This is due'to an Insurance liability being
recarded for the propertion of the net assets of the partlcmating Turids that would be sliocated to poi!cyholders if all relevant surplus &t
-the date-of the consolidated staternent of financial pasition-were to be declared as a pelicyholder: dividend based on current Jocal
fegulations. Both foregoing changas are réfiected in the incone staterient,.

Changes.in the fa|r value.of financial assets. held-to back the Group sunit-inked:-contracts resuit in a corresponding change in insurance
and investment confract ligbilities. Both foregoing changes are also réflected In the income statement.

Further gétals.of the fair value of finandial assets and the sens:twlty analys}s 10 Interest rates and equnty prices are prowded I potes i,
2728 and 22,

Liabilitias arlsiig from reinsurarice confracls

Liabilities arising fromreinsurance contracts can be subjett to'simifar factors to.the policy liabilifies. The judgements exdrcised in the
“valuation-of insurance contract affect the amicunts recagnised inthe financial statements as insurance contract beneflts and insurance
contract fiabilities. Further details of the related accounting. nolicy, Kkey risk arid variables, and the sensitivities of. assumpho_ns to the key
varialles in respect of reinsurance fiabilities are provided in notes1, 2,18 and 31,

Deferred tax asseks .

Estimating the amount of deferred tax-assets-arising from-tax lasses requires a process that involves determining appropriate.
provisions for Income tax xpénse, forecasting future vear's taxablgincome and assessing tha Group's.ability to utilise the tax benefits
throuqh future earnzngs The Group has reviewed its solvancy projections-over the futtre years apd considered the- Expected growith in
annualised. new. preriums, Withinthe forecast periad, where management believe that thie Group will be profitable and will be liable far
ihgome tax payments, it will recognise those losses and utilise any available'tay fosses against fufure sarnings, subject to-maintalning
-sharetinlder continuity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)

‘Critical Accaunting Estimates and Judgements  (continved)

Impairment of Intangible Assels

For the purposes of impairment festing, intangible assets are grouped into cagh-gererating units. Tnese asselsare tesied for.
impalrment oy compdring the. Zarrying amount of the. cash-gengrating unit, to the recoverable amount ofthat:cash- generatmg urit.
The determination of the recoyerable amount. reqmres annif:cant judgernent regarding’ the seiectlon of appropriate valuatidn;
techniques-and assumiptions.

Presentation Currency and Rounding

Thé functional snd presentation currency 'of the Groupis New Zéaland.dolfars, Al amounits are presanted in millions, tnless otherwise
statéd..

Partfeular Accounting Policies

Account'inq_ policies have been consistently applied to _a[i perictds presented, untess:oiherwise stated.

(a) Basisof Consolidation

Where it is determined-that there 53 capac:ty to control, the Group fnsicial statemients consoligfate the financial stétements of a
parent and all its subsidiaries using the acquisition methed of consolidation: Controt exists when the Groupis exposed; or has
rights, to'varlable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect thosa réturns through its power over
the' investee, ‘Subsidiaries . are “consdlidated fraim .the ‘déte on "which contrél is transfarred to the Group and are no longer
tonsolidated from the date that control ceases; -SACL. has 100% ownership of each of its subsidiaries (refer note 14), There are fio
substantial removal rights:and it hag contioiling etonomic interests,

Altintragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial staternents.
SACL Group Companles Acting as Trustee or Manager of Superannuation Schemes
As at the balance date, the Group provides investment management services for the Sovereign Supérahnuation Retiremeant Fund
{SS5RF). The-asseis and habllities-of SSRF ard not intluded inthe Group financial statérents as there is no capacity to control
(&) Forelgn Currency Translation

Ali fareign currencv monetary assets and. liabilities .are translifed to. Néw Zealand currency at the exchange-rate ruling as at
balangce date.

Non-monetary assets. and’ ||ab|||tres denominated.in forgign currences; imeasured at fairvalue, arg ‘transtated to New Zedland
currehcy at the exchange rate rulrnq at-the dates that the valies were- determmed Foraign currency exchange differences.
retating to securities and derivative financial instrumenis are included n |nvestment income.or ather income:

Foreign-currency transactions:are translated to New Zealand currénicy at the exchénge rate ruling at the-date of the transacion.
e) Revenue Recognltlon
-Revenue is recognised to'the extent that it is probable that econarnic: benefits-will flow oy the Group, and that the fevenue and’
“stage of. completion of the” transaction can -be. ‘reliably ‘measured. The' pnnclpal sources of revenua are premzum revenue and
mvestment revenue,
FPremium Revenue
{i Life Insurance Contradts
Premiums received for Providing services.and beanng rishs are recognised asrevenue on an acerual basis. Premiums are
remgnlsed as-revenue when due.from the poiicyhoider.
an  Life Investment-Contratts
Fremiums received are split, with the fee.portion: recogni=ed 45 revenue on an accruat basis and the deposit’ portion’
-recognised-as an increase n'ifz investment contract liabilities.
fmitial entry fee income on lifs. investment contracis.is recognrsed a5 revenue at the outset of the contract ‘only if a-specific initial
service {for 'which the fee relates) is pmwded by the Group-at that time. Otherwise initial entry fee income is-deférred as &
companent of Iife 1nvestm9nt contract liahilities and 1s arprtised as related services are provided under the-contract.

Investment Revenue

Interast:revenue is. recogmsed in the incorne Stéterrent using the effective interest method. Dividend revenue s recoqmsed inthe
income Staterment when the Group's right of receipt is established, Reallssd gains and lnsses o findncil instruments &re included
-as part of wivestment income. Unreslised gains and logses frem far value fg-méastrement of finanial instruments are also.
included ininvestment income {réfer to noté wn:

Renstrance Revents

Upfran: reinsurance commissions are infially recognised n the. income. Stateent and then deferred as liabilities arising from
reinsurance contracks, This amount s then amortised over the e ¢f the underlylng poiicies, in ling’ with the refease of proflt
marqins associated with thiese peliciés. Ongoing reinsurance commission income:s recogmsed in the pertod in which if is earned.

Cittier Revenue.
‘Other revenue 15 récognised on an acerual basis.
(d) Expanse Recognition
' . Llaims .
- Lifer insurance contract elaims are recognised as an ‘expense when a fiabiity Has een established. Claims under Ife |nuestmﬁw
. conlratts represent withdrawals of invastment deposits andare recognised as & reduction in {ife investrment comiract liablipes @
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Notes to the Financial Staterents
For the-six morths ended 31 December 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)

(dy

(e}

)

Expense Recoynition fcontinued)
Acquisition Costs
Acquisltron costs-are the fixed and variable costs of accephng, I155uing .and. mltfalty recording policies, mcluding. initiai comimission

and simifar distribution costs; Acquisition éosts div not include- géneéral growth and davelopment costs that are not specifically.

related to scquisition aciinty.
Acquisition Costs - Life Instirance Contracts -

Acauisition costs attributable to life snsurance contracts are deferred as an elerment of hife insUrance contract liabdities. These
cosfs are amorfised over'the Iile af the. poi:mes written. Unamortised acqusmun costs are & compongnt of the life Insurance
contract lisbilities, - Amortisation of acqulsmen costs are recognised in the lheomia® Staterment as a comaonent of iifa insurance
contract liabilties - Increase/(decreass)' at tha same time a5 policy margins are released,

Acauisitions Costs - Life investment Confracis

Commission that varies with and.i$ directiy-related to-securing new confracts s copitalised s 3 deferréd acquisition-cost asset and-

s Included in‘intangible assets; The deferred acquisition cost asset is stisequently amortised over the life of __the contracts and is
recagnised:in.other operating axpenses in the Inconie Staterment,

‘Malntenance and Investment Management Expenses

Maintenarice costs are-the flxed-and variable costs of administering policies subsequent to sale and are recognised in the Incame

Statement on an accrual basis, These include -general growth and development costs. Maintenante costs intlude all” opeérating.

costs other than acquisition and investment managemsnt costs.

irvestment management costs are the fixed and variable costs of managmq vestment funds and are recogriised in the Income
Statement on.an accrual basls.

-Otter Operating Expenses
‘Al other operating expenses are recognised inthe Income Statement.on en accrual basis.

Qther operating expenses afsc-include émployee. benefits, depreclahon amaortisation and’ other management costs. Empiovee
venefits mclude salaries and ‘wages, anriual and long service 1eave. annial bonuses, KiwiSaver contributions, and premiums on
employee |ife, disability.income and medical schemgs:

Bividand Recognitlan

Ordinary dt‘ndends are recognised as-a-movement in: equity in the repomnq period- within which they: have heen- approved by the

SACL Boaid:

Where a.dividend is déclared post repsriing. date, but prier ti-the date ‘of TssUe of thé financial statements, distlosure of the

declaration.is. made in fhe notes o the financial statements but no kabitity 1s recognisedin the Statement -of Financial Position,
Flnanclal Instruments

BASIS OF RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

The Group class1f:es financial rnstruments into one of- the lollowmg categories- at. initial recognition: financial assets.at Fair Value

'through Profit or Loss {FVPL). Amortised Cost, Falr Vaiue thrgugh Ofher Comprehénsive income. financial Tabltities. &t fair valug

through the Income Statement ang financial liabilties at amorfised cost. Regutar- purchases and sales of finencial assets are
recoghlsed and derecoqnlsed 8% apglicable, using trade date acrounting.

Some of these categories reqtire tneasurement at fair value, Where avallable, quoted market prices. are used as a measure of fair.

value, Where quoted market prices do not exist, fair values gre estimated using present value or other market accepted valuation

technigues, using methads and assumptions that are based on market conditions ahd risks éxisting ds'at balance date,

Financtal assets that arestated at cost or smortised cost are roviewed:at each balance date to-determing whether there is
oblec‘}ve evidence of impairment. NZ IFRS 9 requires entities to estimate and accountfor expected credit losses for’ al relevant’
financial assets that-arenct at fair value through profit and logs, The impairment methodolclqy applied depénds on whether there -
has been a sianificant increase in credit risk. Given ihe nature.of the Geoun's financial assetsnot at FYTPL, being primarily trace
&nd other receivables, the Group applies the Simplified Approach permitted-by NZ IFRS 9 vihich requires-expected lifatime losses
to be.recognised ffom initial recognition -of the recelvables. An impairment loss is reversed if-the subsequent increase inthe
recaverable amount can be related-objectively ta an event occurring after the impairment loss was rﬂcognlsed The impairment
loss is.reversed only 1o the extant that the financial asset's: Carrying amaount does not exceed the carrying smount that wouid have
been determined if no impairrent foss had been receanised. )

Financial assets-are: derecognised when the right'to receive cash- flows from: the financial assets have exﬁired Derecognition also
occurs when the right to raceiveé cash fiows from financial assets have. been transfeérred fogether with sibstantially-all of their fisks
and rewards. A finencial liability 5 derecognised when the: obragatmn under the Ihaility.is dlscharqed cancelled or expired.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR YALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

Assels in this cafegory are measured at-fairvalue at incepition arid-otyan on-going basis-and include:

Securitles

Securities he!d gy life insurance. companlas are recogrised at fair value through the Income Statement at inception because they

back life insurance coftract liabilities or life: |nvestment contract liahilities. Galhs and-osses arising from the fair value
remeasuremem Of SECUI’HIEE are inciudéd as part Of Investment revenue In the Income Statement

. Securitigs include eqq:t\{-securthesf fun_d_ r:_er_hfr_l:ates,.properiv-securl_ues- and_ f:xq_ad ;nte_re;t-_securgt:es,.. _@3
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For the six months ended: 31 December 2018
1 Statement of. Accounting Policies - (continued)
() Financlal Instruments: {continued)

Foreign Currency Contracts
Forward currency contracts are used'_-fo -;e_dbc_e. the Group's exposure to currency movernants affecting the market value of tha
Group's investments denominated.in foreign currencies.
Derivative Financial instrument
Derivative financial instrumenis are recorded at fair value through the Income Statement, bsed-on market’ accepted valustion
technigues using abservable-market inputs, Subsequent gains.and losses. arising from.the: fair value re-measurement of derivative’
financial instruments are recognised immediately in investment revenue in thé-Income Staterrdent. All derivalives used- by the
Group are classified as fair value-through profit ang Ioss as-they do not-meet the criteria for hedge accounting under NZ 1FRS 9.
The Group recodnises-derivatives in the Statement of-Financial Positioh &t 'their.fé_ir value, Dertvative assets are the farr value of
derivatives which Rave a positive fair value, Derivative liabilities are the fair value of derivatives which-have a negative fair velue.
AMORTISED COST
Assets.in this category are recognised initially at fair value’plus transaction costs and are'subsequentiy measured at amortised:
cost using the effective interest method Jess any allowance for uncollectibie amounts which include:
Cashand Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include bank.current atcounts, cash on &eposit and ragistered certificates of depost, readily
tonvertible o known amounts of cash, that are subject to-an insignificant risk of change in value. Assets in this category are.at.
fdce value.and inierest Is taken to the income Statement when earned, Bank overdrafts are shown within:cash and cash
equivalents if the net position is an asset due te the Group's right to-offset overdrafts within its.banking facilify.
Trade and Other Receivebles _ _
Trade and other receivables include investment recéivables; amounts due from related parties, smounts due from reinsurers and
other current assets. These assets are short term in niature. and the carrying amaunt Includes allowances for impaired fecéivables
and therefore Is.considered & reasonable estimate of fair value. IFRS'S introduces a.change in the model fo.account fer
imgairrent ta a forward-looling- expected credit foss model (ECL) that resuits in losses recogmiséd bafore. an actual default event
has taken place.
NZ {FRS 9 requires entities to estimate and accaunt. for expected.credit fosses {ECL for all relevant financial assets not at fair
valye through the profit and.loss (FYTPLYas under 1AS 39, The Group has adopted.and applied the siraplified modet for ECL for a1l
financial assets not measured at FYTPL, except premiums and reinsurance recetvabie,
FINANGIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT
Life ifwastment contract liabilitres are measured at-fair value, with-subsequent gains and losses arising from far value re-
measurement-racognised in the-income Statement. Refer'to note 1l for moré details of life Investment contract Mabdities,
FIRANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED:COST
This category incltides &l fihanttal liabilities other thar those designated by the Groug as at fair value :thrjouqh the incomea
Statement. Liabikities in this category.inglude:
frade and Olher Fayables
Tratie and-other payables includes-amounts dué to. agents, autstanding claims, mvestment creditars, trade creditors and ACCryals,
amounts due 1o related parties, reinsurance payable. and other paysbles. Liabitbies in this categery are initrally. measured at fair
value plus fransaction costs. After initiat recognition, they are measured st arortised cost usingithe effective irterest method.

(o) Plant and Equipment
Plantand eauipment are Stated at cost less sccuriulated depreciation and'impairment fosses,
The cost of plant ang equi'pment'less the estimaied residual value 15 depreciated over their useful lves on & straight-line basis.
Dapreciation of work in progress will-not. begini until the aset is avaifable for use te. when it is-in the focation and condition.
necéssary for it to-be operating in the manner intended by management. The estimated useful lives of the majbr assets are.
*  Leaseholdimprovements and services. _ 10 -18 years
H Office-equipment. furniture and fittings and comipuier equiprnent - 3-10 years
The Group Is in the process of aligning to AIA Group accounting policy. Linder AlA dccounting policy, tha useful fife of the above
asset categorias is 3 - 5 years. The Group inténds to atign té this policy during the next repdrting penad.
These assets are revieweq for Impairmeént at least annually and. .Whenaver;evgnts or changes-m-circumstances indicate that the
carrying siount may npt be recoverable. Ar asset's carrying amaount is winitten-down imriiediately to ifs recaverable amount if the
Jsset's carrying amount is greater-than its éstimated recoverable amount, Any impairment loss is recognised mmediately In the

income: Statement. The recoverablée amount is-the-higher of the assel's fair valug lesscosts (g sell and value inuse.

() Intanglble Assets
Internally Developed Software, Acquired Soffware M:_enr:es and Application Software
The Group generally. expenses computer soffware costs in the year incurred. However, some costs associated with dévelaping
identifiable and Unique- software products controlled by the-Group, including emplayee costs and - 8n -approgriste portion -of
refevant; overheads, aré capitalised and treatéd as intangible assets when certain criteria are met. Acquired computer-software
ticenses are capitafised-on the bas_is that ihey are ‘costs ingurred ‘to scquire and to Use specific: software., These assets.are- e [
. . Amortised using the'straidht-iine method over fher-useful lives {not exceeding three years). ?/g)'
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (centinued)
{h)y Intanglble Assets feontinticd)

m

i

(K)

Ofer Intangible Assets and Deferred Acquisition Costs

Costs for the right to service pchc:es ‘have been capltalnsed ‘and, treated as intangible assets. These assels are. arnortised-using the
stralght-llne method over theif usefui lives. Offier operating costs (refer note 1td)) that vary with, and are direttly related to
securing- new Iife- investrhent policies, are capitalised &s-a deferred acquisition .cost intangible asset, and -are” subsequently
amortised over the hfe of the confracts; ' '

¥ Agenhgy purchases 18- 54 months

5 Deterred acquisifion costs- &-17 years

Intanglbie Assels impsirment REviews.

Intangile gsséts areé asseséed at-an assét level when they generate idependent cash intlows. otherwise:they are-grouped into

Cagh Generating Units: (CGY) for impairment purposes, Impairment reviews are. performed. annuaf!v to. identify events or. changes

I ciccumstances’ that indicate fhat tHe carfrying amount may not’ be-recoverable. 1f tHe assét or the CGU's, carrylng amount is.

greater than Its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU-is written:down to its recoverable
amount. The fecoverable amount is the higher of the asset or CGU's: fair value lesy costs to-sell and the value in-use, Any
Impairment Ioss isrecognised |mr‘m¢3diatelyr in the Incofne Statement,

Taxation

Tax. expense for the: period comprises currernt and deferred tax. Tax is recoanised In the' come Statement, except to the extent

that-brelates to itermns recognised i other gomprehensive income.or dirgctly in equdy, n whith case, the tax is recognised in other
-comprehenswe incame or.dirgctly in equity, respecnvely

-Current tax is the expected ‘tax paystile on the taxable Income for the penud using tax rates ericted or substantially.enacted at
‘balance date after taking advaniage of all sliowable deductions under’ cuprent. taxation legisiation, it also. includes any adjustment

to tak payable in respect of previgus fihancial years. Current tax s recognised.as a liability (or assel) to the extent that i is. unpait
{or refundable).

Deferred tax Is provided using the balance sheel listility methed, providing for temporary differences between the €arrying
-ameurits of assets and liabifitles for finaricial reporting. purpeses and the amounts used for taation purposes; The-amount of
deferred tax provided is-based on the expacted manner of fealisation or setilemment of the carrying amount-of assets and liabilitles,

using tax rates enacted or- substanlwely enacted af balatice date.

In accordance with NZ 1AS12 fricorne Taxes, 8 deferred taxstion asset is recognised-onty to the extent thatit s probable {le. more
lialy thar natj thai a future-taxable profit will.be: avanabia against which the.asset can he utilised. Deferred taxation. assets-are
reduced to the extent that it is no-lonyér probable that the refated- tax benefit will be réalised. Any réduction is recognised in the
income Staternant,

Tax lizbilities and assets are fransferréd-amang group-companies through intercompany accounts at the curient tax rate.if, and
anli if, the entities. concerned have a'legally enferceable fight to-make or receive a. sifigle net payment. and the entities intend-to
make or receivé such a net-payment or to recover the asset and settle the lability simultangousiy:

Life Insurance Tax
From 1.July 2010, Iite insurers have been subject (o 3 new taxregime: Two tax bases are mantained; the sharetiolder base which is

.SUbJECt 4o fax on fife risk products {premiums less ¢igims and expenses}.arid het invastment ineeme from shareholder funds, and

the policyficlder base which 1s subject to tax on net investment income. fram pollcyho!der funds. The life.insurer pays tax on both

‘pases-at the prevaillng corporate tax rate of 289 (30 Juné 2018 28%). As the fife Insurar isitaxed as-proxy for the policyhalder,

returns i policyhdlders are tax exempt.

The regime {5 applicable 1o gl {ife insuranca pohcaes irrespective of when théy.were issued. Howsver, the new regime: offers.a

concessional tax treatment (known as.& transitional adjustment} for life insurance palicies that-were in forte prier to ) Jbly 2010,

The impact of the fransitional adjustment is that it effectively. treats designated policies (known as qrandpa.ented paliciesy as -
having Income- tax:lavied on.a basis equivalent to.the fife office base under the old tax regime. In qeneral grandparented status-
lasted for 5 years rrom1 July 2010 However, for certain policy types, narnely-level term policies; the grandpargnted status can'be-

for the'turation of the policy.

Goods and Services Tax

Where a transaction is subject lo Goods and Services Tax (GSTL the financial statements: have been prepasied so that all
components are stated eiciusive of 63T, with the.exception of trade recelvables and {rade payables, which include GST.invoiced.
Provislons:

A provision s regognised in the Statement.of FiRancial Posltion shen the Group hasa-.present legal or consiructive. ohligation as a
resuli-of past events: jt i5 probable that an outflow of resources ‘will be required {0 5ettle the obhgatton and & reliatile estimate can
be made of the-amolint of the ohiigation.

LIfe Insirance Bustness:
Siatutory 'Obﬁga!ims '

The New Zealand insurance industry ks Fequisted. by’ the RBNZ under the insurance (Prudential Suparvision) Act 2010 (IPSA). PSA
requires-ali entities carrying on insurahce business’ in Mew. Zeaiand (as deflned by IPSA} to'hold a ficence. SACL holds a full licence
under IPSA. ‘Key elements of the insurance prudenhal superwsmn regime’ inciude: rinimum, sdivency requirements and regular

'reportrng to {he RBNZ, the need for directors and other relevant officérs to meet fit and proper standards, and governance and
“risk imdnagement requirements,

wae
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For the six months'ended 31 December 2018
1 -Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
[{7] Life Insurance Business (continued)
IPSA requires thaf a fife insurer must af all timas have at least one statutory fund in respect of its ife insurance business, On 1 July
2013, SACL established a statetory fund, the Soverelgn Statutory-Find Np.{, that relates solely to SACL's life insurance business as
defined by IPSA. SACL's standalone health insurance business {which is not classitied as life insurance business undér IPSA) and
business that does not refate to contracts of insurance are included ih SACL's Other Fund. The activities of-the statufory fund are-
reperied In aggregate with the Other Fund in the fmantial'stat’emer_]ts,_Fur_th_er information on the stafutory fund Is provided in
notes 22 and 30,
SACL has an fnsurer financial strengthi-rating of A+ (Supefior) Issued by international rating agency AM. Bestwith an eflective
date of 14 Decamber 2018,
Life Insurance and L ife investmint Contracts - Classiication
The Group's kfe Insurance business Is spiit hetween:kfe. insurance contracts and life investment contracts. Life isurarice contracts
ara -accounted for in accordance with the requirements of. NZ IFRS 4 /nsirdnce. Contracts. Life’ investment contracts are
accounted for in actordance with NZ IFRS 9 Finaniclstinstruments: '
.Life insurance contracts are those cohtracts that transfer significant insurance risk, Life investient contracts are those contracts
with no significant insurance risk, bt which give fise to a financial abilify under NZ FRS &.
Contracts that contain a discretianary participation.fzaturs’ are also classifiad as life Insurance contracts,
The financial reporting mettiodalogy used to determing the value of life insurante contract liabilities' 15 refarrad. to as Margin on
Servicas (MoS), as set:put in New Zéaland Society of Actusries Professional Standard No. 20: Determination of Lifé Instrance
Folicy Liabilities. MaS is designed to recogrise profits on life nsurance palicies as services are provided to polcyholders and
ncorne is received, Under Mo, the planned profit. margin of premium received less ekpenses Is defeirad and amortised over the
life-of the contract, whereas losses are recognised imimediately, .
Life insurance contract labilitles are caleulated in & way that aliows for the sysiernatic-release of planned profit marging as
services-are pravidsd to policyholders and the revenues reldting te those services are received. Services uséd to determine profit
recognition include the cost of éxpected insurance claims. and annuity. payments. Life insurance coritract abliities are generatly
determined as-the present value of all futdre edpectad payments, eXpenses, faxes and -praft marging, reduced by the present
walue of sl future expacted premiums,
Profit-is analysed into the following catagories:
ty  Planned Margins of Revenues Qver Fxpenses.

At the time-of wnting a policy and at-each balance date. best estimate assumptiond-are uséd to deterdnine all expectad future
-paymenté'(mciuding_tax) and premiums, Where. actual experiericeé replicates best estimate assurnptions, the expected profit
-marging will be released to profit over the life of the policy:

Ui} The Difference Between Actual and Assumed Exgerience

.E:;_pe_rience_ profits and losses are reaiised-wherg. actual éxperience differs from best estimate assumptlons. Instances giving

rise to expérience profits and losses inciude variations n claims, expenses, mortality, discontini:ance and investment returns

{to the extent the-sharehoider assumes investment risk).

i) Changes to Uinderlying Assumplions

Assirnptions: used for measuring Iife insurance contract. labilittes-are- feviewed each year, Where the review leads to a

changa in assumptions, the change is déemad to have occurred from the end.of the year,

_f_r_\e__f_ir_:anc!a_: efféct of:a change in discolni rates résulting from changes jn-ma__r_ket' candibions 1s:récagnised in the year that

the rates ere changed. The financial effect of all other changes to -assurAptions g recognised In the Income Staterment over

the- future years during wiich services are provided to policvholders, K. based on best estmate assurfiptions, written

business of a group-of related produtts is expected to be' Unprofitable. the total expected ioss for-that refated product-group

is-recognised in the Tncome Statement’ immediately. When loss making business becémes profitable previausly recognised

losses are reversed. '
vy Investment Earnings on Asséts in Excess of Policy Liablities

Profits are generated from investrent assets in excess of those required to'meet poficy-habifitigs, Investment earnings are

divectly influenced by market conditions.and as such this componient of Mo$ profiiwiltvary from vear to year.

Life:investment Contrack Lishliities

All contracts issued by the Group which are c_!assaf':ed as ife in_urest_ment'tcnfrac_ts_ are unit linked. The faif value of a unit linked
corifract is’ determined-using the current unit values that raflect the fair valug of the financial assets. backing. the contrack,
multiplied'by the nimber of ynits attributed to the contract holder,

identification of Assels Backing Lite Investment Conlracts

All contracts issued by the Group that are classified a5 life Wsurance contracts are non-linked, . The assets ‘hacking Unt-linked
“contracts are in séfiarate wnvestmerit funds from those backing non-linked contracts.

Refnsurance

Contracts entéred Into by the Group with reinsurers all reet the definition af ar insurance contract:

mncoma and expanses are recognised separately in the Income Statement whén they become due-and payable in accord'a_nc_e-w_ltn. .
the reinsurance agreaments, pw@

As the reinsutance agreements provide for indemniication of the Group by _'f_h_e- refnsurers ‘agsinst loss or liability, reinsurance -‘%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six irofnths ended 31 December 2018

1 Statement of Accouriting Policies (confinued)
(k) Life lhsurance Business {continued)
Reinsurance recoveries for claims are retognised as reinsurance income: Reinsurange premiums are recognised as reinsurance
exXpenses,
Lisbilities cedsd under reinsurance are-the present value ot future remsuratice claims receivable and commissions. and premiums
payable-by the Group and have been-class&ifled as an asset or liabifities ceded under reinsurance. Reinsurance Bs5ets;are assessed
for-impairment on 3 quarterly basis,

Ll__ab'_i'h_t_i'es arising from rensurance tontracts are.computed us'i_ng the life insurarice cantracts method as per a_b_mre and Inline wit_h_
reveriue recognition in note Ke,

(0 Retirement Benefits Obligations
The Group-currently sponsots thé SSRF superanriuation plan far its-employess and ex-employees. The assets and fiabilities:of this
plan are:tield independeritly of the Group's assets in a separate trustee-administered fund: The plan has both a-detined benefit and
defined-contribution sectionand has been closed to new members since 01 July 2004,
Full disclosures of the defined benefit and coritribution pian a5 required by NZ JAS 19 Emplayee Benetits have-not been presentad
on the basis that these assets and fabilities are not material in the centext of the Group's Statérhent of Financial Position.

Defined Benelit Plans.
Defined benetit:plans-are tormat arcangements:under whichan entily provides post-emplayment benefits.
The-assel Tecognised on-the Statemant of Financhal Position in respect of SSRF is calculated as the preseht value of the defined

benatit obligation and the fair valie.of the plan's assets deducted, The discount rate s the yield at balance date on gavernment
‘seclrities which have approximately the same terms to maturity, Where the calcufation resuits in a bengfit to the Group, the:
recognised assel is linited to the present valie of any future erplover. contrlbutions to the:plan that can be fundad from the plart
surplus.
Actuarial-gains afid losses arising from the above valuation are charged or credited directly to tha Stateinent of Comprehansive
income.

Defined Contrivution Plans
The 58RF Déf_ine_d Contribution Plan is 8 post-emplayment benefit. plan unddr which'the Group pays fixed contribuitions to:the plan
and -wilt have-na legal or constructive obligation.to-pay further contributions if the fund does not held sufficient dssets fo pay all
ernplayee henefits relating to employee sérvice inthe current and prior years. |
Lontributions to. 5SRF arg recognlsed as an éxpense in the Income Staternent asincurred.

{m)* Employee Benefits _
‘Ernployae benefits are-recognised when they accrue to eniployees.and influde safaries, wages, bonuses, annual leave. long service
leave and pension chfigations; A provisioftis made for the estimated §ability for employee benefits as a-result of services rendered
by employees up to the reporting date. '
“Ligbilities arlsing in respect of empioyee entitlements expected to be seftied withih 12 months of the reporiing date are meastired
_attheirnominal amounts. All gther ernployée entitlementsare medsured as the present value of expected future payments made

iy respect of services provided:by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration 1s.taken based-6n axpected future U_ptake ot

“the benefit, current wage and salary levels. departires -and periods of service, ‘Expected fulure paymenis are discountad using

market yields at the reporting date on-New Zealand Government Bonds.with terms to maturity and currency thet match, as.clasely
.85 possible, the estimated future cash Rows,

{n} Share Based Compensation and Cash Incentive Fians
AlA, the ultimate owrer of the Group, operates several share-based-compensation plans, under which AlA receives services from
the emplavees, directors, officers and agents as. consideration for shares..andfor sharé options of AlA; Thase sharé-based
conpensation pléns comprise the Share Option Scheme {50 Schemey, the Restrictec Share Unit- Scheme (RSU Scherne) anid the’
£rnployee. Share Purchase Plan (ESPP):
The shere-based- compensation plans are’ predominantly -equity-setiled plans. Under an equity-settted share-based coripensation
plan, the fair value of the émiloyee servites received in exchange for'the award of shares and/or share options is recagnised as’
an expense in the hcome Statement gver-the vesting pertod. with & corresponding amount. recorded as equity in AlA Grobp's.
ﬂnancial:_statements. Any Bmountrechiarged by AIA t'o__'th;i.Grpu_p_ foiequity=settied share based pa__vrne_nt-'ar_rahqemen_ts are offset
against the atnount recorded in the related party balance for AlA.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting perfod:is determined by reference to the fair value-of the shares andjor share.
opticng awarded. Norrmarket vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number.of shiares andfor share. options
that are expacted ta be vestad. At each pericd end, the Group. revises its estimates. of the number of shf__ar_es'and{__or__s_har_e options,
that are expectéd to be vested. Any impact of the revision to-original estimates is recognised In the. Income Sfatement with a
corresponding -.adjustment' to the intercompany balance for Ala, Where awards of ‘share-based payment airangemants: have
graded vesting fermmis: each tranche is recognised as a-separate-award, and therefore the fair value of each tranche isrecognised
over the applicatie vesting:period,
The Group estimates the tairvalue of share options using a binomial tatfice rmodl, This model requires inputs sich as AlA's share
price, implied volatility, risk-iree interest rate, expected dividend rate and the exgected Hfe of the:shiare.aption. ]
Where modification.or cancellation of an equity-gettled share-based comperisation pian occiirs, the grant date fair value continues ﬁ

to be recdgnised, together with‘any incremental valye: arfsing onithe.date of modification if hon-rarket conditions dre met. pwc
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 3i December 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)

(n}

(o)

(0

.

(r)

{s)

expense are adjusted accordingly.

Shara -Based ‘Compensation and Ca_sh‘.lncentive Plans: {ca:it{naedj

For cash-settled sharg-based compénsation glans, the fair value of the employee services i exchange for the award of cashe

sertled award is recogniseéd as an expense m profit or joss, with 3 carresponding amount recognised in iability. At the end of gach,
reporting period, any unsettied award is re-measurad based on the change fh fair vatlue of the underlying asset, the Habiiity and

Refer tonote. 24 for. the detaiis of shara-based-compepsation plasis,

Contingent Liablfities.

The Group discloses.a contingent liability when It-has'a possivle-obligation-zrising from past events; that wil be confirmed by the
eeclrrenice or nor-pteurrente of one’hr'm‘ore uncertain future events not wholly within the Group's control. A contingent liability
is disclosed wher a present pbligation i8not recognised Hecause it 15 not probable that :an outflow of-resources will be required 1o

‘settle-an obligatian; or the amount of the obligation cannat be-migasured with Sufficient relf'_ab_iuty, )

Statement of Cash Flows

‘This has biten prepared using _the.diréct.approa_ch. mod_if_ied by the netting of ‘cash flows associated vnth related partied and faregn

exchange forward coritracts. For these items, the Group considers that kriowledge of gross receipts and payrngnts is not essential
to understanding the activities of the. Group and it i§ considered ‘atceptablé torreport only the net cash fldws; Thisis based on the

Tact that the turnover of these iterms is guick, the amounts are large.-and the maturities are short.

Segment Reporting’

The Group is not required to disclose gaographic or operating segment.infarmation under NZ-IFRS 8 Operating Segments. On this
basis there are no-disclosures relating to the Group's geographicor operating segments. .

Leasas

Leases in which'a sugnif'ic_ant-porti_c_m“of the rigks and Tewards of oiwnership are' retained by the fessor are dassied as gperating
leases, Payrments made undér Gperating leasas are charged to the Income Statemient on a'straight-ine basls over the-perinidof the
lease.

Leases. in which the léssee.has substantfally afithe risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance-leases
are capitalised at the cafnmencement of the Jease at:the Jower of the falr vaiue of the isased property and.the present valug of the
rminimum lease payments ' '

The Group will apply NZ IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019, This will result ini & change 1n treatment.to existing Ieases. Refer to pote 1

undar the heading ‘General Accounting Policy! for more’ information on the mpact implereriting this standard will have or the:

Group.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions .with related parties are. recorded . at amounts mutually agrsed and transacied between the parties to the
arrangefnent.

Eh

Pwe
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For the six months ended 3t December 2018

.2 Actuvarlal Policies and Methads
The ettective. date of the policy liabilities and soivency margin caicutation for the Group is. 31 December 2018, Charmaing Green FIAA, as
the Acting Chief Actugry of SACL at balance date. s $ahisfied as o the acturacy of the data fraf which the amount of life insurance,
and life investment contract liabilities has heen determined.
The projection mithod is ysed to déterming hfe insurance, and-fite investment coniract liabifities. in-principle, the préjecticn method
uses expected cash lows {prermiums, investrmient incore. surrenders or benefii payments, expenses) plus profit marging to-be released
in future periods, to cateulate the present value of contract liabilities.

Life insurance anid fife investment contract liabdities have been:determined in accordance with Professional Standard No. 20 of the New
Zeatand Society of Actuaries and the requirements of NZ IFRS 4. '

Key-assumptions-used in detérmining Efe:insurance and fife investment contract fiabilities are as Tollows:

(2}
RG]

i

(b}

(«©)

(d)

(e}

4]

Discount Rates y .

Buisiness Where Beriefits are Confractually Linked to'the Performance of Assels Hetd

The. discount rétes used to-determine life insgrance and life investrment contract liabifities reflect the expected future’gross
returns -on the: Group's current stratégic asset mix. Fixed interést investrhents were assumed to earn 2:4% pa (30 Jung 2018
2:9%) and equity Investments 6,4% pa (30 .June 2018 6.9%%). The discount rates used “For individual tlasses of business varied.
betwieen 2.4% pa and.3:8% pa (30 June 2018 2:3% and 41%6).

Other Business

The discount rate-used to determine Jife nsurance contradt llabilities i$ o fisk free discount rate, Single polnt discount rates nave
been deiermined so that the term steucture of the prodircts is faken Into account in setfing the discount rate. For annuities and.
risk business rates. between 2,296 anid 3.3%6 pa were Used (30 June 2018 2.6% to 3.7%).

Profit Carrlers-

Policies ara dividedinta related product groups with profit carriers and profit margins as follows:

Failcy type. Carrler _
Risk ' Expected claims payments
Savings business Funds under management/investment management expenses

Traditional partlcipat‘mg business:  Bornuses

‘Invéstment and Maintenanica Expenses
Future mizinténance and investment expénses have been assumed 8t current levels In line with contractual fees set out in

agreements with Sovereign Services Limited (_SS'L).' a wiinlly owned subsidiary of SACL, and external fund managers. Future
infiation has heen assumed 1o be 2.0% pa (30 Jdune 2018 2.0%).for detérmining future-gxpenses and Inflation-linked increases in
benefits and premiums. '

Taxatlen

The rates of taxation enacted or substantially enacted at-the'daté of the vafuation are assumed to-continue into the fufire. The

corporate tax fate used is 28% (30 June 2018 28963, Allowance has beely inade tor the "fair dividend rate” rules that apply to

global equities, where tax-is paid on 5% of the market value of investments regardiess of the actualrata of investment income,

Rates of Growth of Unit Prices

Unit price growth is assurned to be ‘equal to the assumed investrent earning rates fess tax and assel based charges for each
product: '

Mortality.and Morbidity

Projected future rates -of moftality experience are ‘hased ori-a. proportion. of the NZ97 tables. These are then adjusted by
comparing the: standard tables with the Group's own experience using.geomistric smaothing techniques or moving averages.

Annuitant rmortality 15 3ssumed to be'a proportion of the PMASZ and PMFS2 tables; adjusted for-mortality improverments prior 1o
and after the valuation date.

1 general, mortality assumptions are reviewed based on annual experience studies.

Theere have been nig _cha_r\qes-ijn_ mariality assurmptions since 30 June 2018,

The proportions of NZ97 adoptad fof the major products range from 4?__% 10:968 (30 June 2018 4739 to S6%%).

Projected futyre morbidity. experience is based on a combination of rélnsurers" tables, industry tables, industry experience and

internal investigations. For significant classes of business, internal experiencé is cormpared with reinsurers'tables usirig .ggomietric
smoothing technigues ar movirig averages., )

pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
2 Actuarial Policies and Methods {continued)

(M Mortallty and Marbldity (continued)

In gerieral, morbidity assumptions &re reviewed based oh annbal experience studies.
There have been no ¢hanges inmorbidity assumptions since 30 June 2018

(9) Rates of DIscontinuance

'Assumptions_-._f_or the incidence of withdrawal, partisi termination snd transfer -t policies- paid-up are’ primarlly based on’
nvestigations of the Group's own exparience,

There have been no-changes in discontniante rates-since 30 June 2018,

Future rates of discontinuance are;

As at 31 Becember 2018

Life rate ior dge <30 9% 4% 16% 15%  15% 4%  13%  13% 2%  10%
3039 §% 10% 4%  13%  12% 2% W% 1%  10% 9%
40-49 T% O 10% 4%  18%  12%  12% 1% 1% W% 10%
50-64 B% 13% 7% 14%  15% 4% 14%  15%  13% 120
65+ 13% 7% 23% 2% 1% 20% 200  19%  19% 1%

Life level to-age 80 <30 6%  13%  14%  13%  M% 8% 8% 7% 6% &%
30-39  12% 0% 0% 9% B% 6% 6% 5% 5% 4%
A0-49 B% 6% 7% 6% 5% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
50 -.64 6% 7% 8% 6% 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 3%

65+ 5% 6% 7% 6% 6% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%
As.at 30.Jine 2015
‘Life rate for age ¢30 9% 4% 6% 1S%  15% 4% 1% 13% 12% 10%.
30-39 6%. 0% W%  1B% 1% 2% % W 10% 9%
40-49 7%. 10% 4% 3% 2% 12% % 1% e 10%
50-64 8% % 7% 14% 5%  14% 4%  15% 3% 12%
85+ 13% W%, 23% 2’ 219  20%  20%. 19%. 9%  18%
Life level to age 80, ¢30 18%.  13%  14%  13% 1% 8% 8% 7% 8% 6%

30-35 2% 0% 0% 9% 8% 6% 6% 5% 5% 4%
40-49 8% 6% % 6%  S% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
50-64 6% 7% 8% 8% &% 5% 5% 4% 4% 30
65+ 5% 6% 7% 6% 6% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%

Other Risk: €30 20% 1294 20% 12%

30-3% 14% 12% 149% 12%

d0-49 19 % % 11%

5p-d4  10% 129 10% 1%

65+ 8% 15% 8% 5%
Partiéipating. 3% 3%
Savings 8% 8%

thy  Baslsof Calculation of Surrender Values

Surrender values are sét using ani asset shiare approach and taking into consider ation equity-between coritinuing and terminating
pahcyholders. S

The surrender value basis has not beenthanoed sinde Juhe 2018,

S

S Pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
2. Actuarial Policies and Methods (continued)

(i} Partlclpating business
For-mast participating business, bonus rates are set such t_h_at'-oirer long pericds, the refurns to pelicyhelders are commensurate

with the investment returns achisved on thie relevant assets, together with other sources-of profit arising from this business.
Distributions are split between policyholders and shareholders. with the valuation allowing for shareholders -to share in

distributions at a maximum allowablé rate of 20% (30.June.2018:20%4):

In applying the policyhoiders' share of prafits to provide bonuses, consideration 15-given to equify between genérations.- of
policyholgers and equity between the various classes and sizes of policies Targe. Assumed future bonus Fates inckuded in life

insurance contract Habilities were st such that the present valug of ife nsurance contract labilities eguates to-the fresent value

of a5sets supporting the business togethier with assumed [utare invéstment retufns. allowing for the sharehglder's right to
patticipate in distributions: )

Assumes futiire bohus ratés per annum for the:major classes of individual participsting business were;

Ex-Colonial policies ‘BonusFate onsum assured 0,20%

ate.o 5 0:20%

Bonus rate on existing bonus 0.20% 6.20%

Ex-Frudential bolicies Bonys rate on sumeassured 0.25% 0.255%%:
Bonus rate onexisting bonus 0.25% 0.25%

Ex-NZt policies Bonus rate.on sum assured: 0.13% 0.13%.
‘Banus rateon existing bonus 0.25% ‘0.25%

Ex:Metropofitan.life policies Bonus rate on suni assured 0.00% 0.00%
Bonus rate on existing bonus 0.00% ‘0.00%

Investmient account policies Grediting Rate 2.65% 3.23%

)] lmpa‘_cf .of Changes in Assumptions

Refer i note 1K) for an eplanation of the trea't'men_t af changes-in actuarial assuinptions-on life insurance contract liabifities. The:
impact of changes in actuarizl assumptions made during the repdrting period are;

Market refated changes to discount rates 23 bl 18 -

Mortality and morbidity ao (22} - £2)
Digcomtinuance rates - 42 - 2
Maintenance expenses @) A 1 {2}
Relnsurance® (477) 1 - -
Other assurrptions. ) {44 . )

The implementation of & new reinsurance treaty has adversely. impacted on futurs profit margins. -

*This refates.to the impact from the reinstirance treaty éntered info by the Group-during the perigd..

3 Sources of Profit’

Lifa Insurance

Blanned margins of revenues over esrienses ‘23 72

Unwind of discount on policy liabllities - hi|

Differénce between actual and assumed e_xper'iénce: (3} 8

Effeets.of changes in inderlying assumptions o -

Reversal / (recognition) of {uture expected losses. M 4

Net profit after taxation arisisg fram Ilfe Insurance contracts 3. S5

LIfe investment

Flanngt rivarging of revenues over expenses 3 5

‘Net profit after taxation arising from fife Investment contracts 3 &

-Shareholder investment earnings 4 6 E
", Tetal dfe activitles o 107 =
Nt profit after taxation attributed fo sharehoiders 10 -10@ c
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the'six:mohth’s- e'nqed- 31 December 2018

rnonths to

Framlum revenue

Life insurance contract premiums 363 16
Life investment contract.deposit pramiums.and fee income g 10 B2
Total premiums ' EYEY 738
Less, Deposit premiums recognised as an Increase in fife-investment contract liabiitias B8 {5) (21
Total premium revenus 364 kL
Less: Rainsurance expeanse- {117} (48):
Total net premium revenue 187 669

§ Investment and Other Revenue.

Dividends [ 12

Reslised anig unrealised {fosses)/galris {43) 72
Total equity securities and fund certificates 37 80,
Dividends 1 4
‘Realised and unréalised-(losses}/aains {3} B
Total property securities 2) 10.
‘Interest a0 49
Realised and unrealised gains _ 9 12
Tatal fixed Inferest securities and cash 39 &l
Realised-and uniealised gaths/tosses) 4 (19)
Tatal derlvatives: _ 4 (19)
Total investment revenue- 4 142
Other revenue

Investment fae ) -
Other revenie o - 3
Total other revenue a 3

6 Reinsurance Commission

Inigfal comnission 725 -
Cngoinig commisston: 25
Tetal Relnsurarice Commilssien 750 -

The Group entered 1nto-a new remnsurance treaty arrangemant on 2: Suly 2018, subsequent fo.the scguisiion by AlA international
‘Limited, Under this treaty, the Group received an upfront feinsurance commission of $725mil, and angeing commigsionof 525 mil
for the six montt peried to 3st.Decemibier 2018,

7 Claims Expense

Death, didability and medical claims 206 362

Matirities 15 31

Surrenders 43 104

Annuihies - . 2 4

Tatal claims 266 50t

Less:Claims recoghised.as adecrease m hfe vestrent contract liabilities B8 . (42)° 1106)

Total clalms expense 224 395 '
Less: Reinsurance recoveriés . (89) (43 m@,
Tutal.ne't-glalms_ expanse _" 135 . 352 pw@

Soveraign Assurance Company Limited and Sohsidiaries 2t




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 3t December 2018
‘ E} Other Operatipg Expenses

hifial comimission 27 59 - . 27 59

Other acauisition €xpenses .. 33 59 1 1 34 60
Polley acquisiflan expenses ‘60 18 i 1 &1 G
Renewal commission 45 89 1 3 46. 92:
Other maintenance expenses ; 54 61 i 2 55 53
Policy malntenance expenses ) 150 B 3 1ot 155
investrment Managamant expenses 1 3 1 2 2 5
Total Hfe dxpenses . 160 - __4 8 164 279
Other expenses = =
Total othet operating expenses S 1e4 2190
included ahove:
Opérating lease expenses 2 ]
Amortisation of intarigible assets 1 3
Depreciaticn 1 2
Erployee benefits expense

Wages and salaries bt 15

Defined contribution plan expense. 1 2
Figuciary expanses i 2

g Al;lditpr"'s Remuneration

PricewaterhouseEoupers is the appointed auditor of the Group-for the current ang pricr Period.
Fees paid to PrigewaterhauseConpers are-as follows,

Fres o the audit and review of financialstatemens 754 863
Assurance and agree Lpon firocedures over sofvency return a4 4
‘Other assurance services ralated to the acquisition of the Group 582 18
Agree upon procedures refated to reinsurance 12 -

‘Other assurance related services - 8

Other asstrance related services includeé worlk perfarmed over the off-quarter disclosure staterrients in priu_r periods.ang other agreed
-upon procadures.

10 "Taxation

Current taxation expense 4 25
Deferred taxatidn expanse 19 21 13
Total taxation expense récognised In the Income Statement 25. &4

The taxatioh éxpensé on.the Group's net proft before taxation differs from the:thegratical amount that would arise-using the domestic
rate as jollows:

Nat proflt befare taxation .35 151
Ihicorhe tax at the current rate of 28%{ 30 June 2018 28%) 10 42
Investinent Income agjustments. 13 29
Imputation and PIE tax credit adjustrrients: & (e
Maverrent In investment conéract fisbilities and adjustments {8) ir
Movement injnsurance contract liatiities and adjustments 10 it
Othernon-deductile expenditure 2 ¥
Prior period adjustments . )
Tatal'taxatlon expense recognised In the Income Statement 25 45, g
Weighted averige effective faxrate 7158 '2’9”%__@3:

pwe
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For the six months ended 31 Decermber 2018
11 Imputation Cradit Account
Companies ray. attach imputation credits to dividends paid, _w'hich represent the New Zealand fax.aiready paid by the_co’mban_’v o tax
group.on profits, New Zealand resideft sharehdlders may claim a tax credit to the valug of the imputation credit artached to dividends.
The Group has formed an imputation group with eligible mémbers of the AIANZ Qéoup UCA-Group), T'he-clps_}ng baiance of mputatfon
credits gvailable to all.members of the IZA Group as at 31 December 2018 is:87 million {30 June 2018 34 million): This &mount INcludes

imputation credits that will arise from the paymeant of the provigion for income tax and from the receipt of dividends recognised as
receivables ag at the reporting date. and imputation deblis that will arise-from the payment of dividends recognised as payables as at

the reporting date,
12 Securities

st
30.June

“$mithons <
Equity securities and fund certiicates
Fixed interestsecurities:

New Zealand government stock: 1,024 127
Corparate bonds 22 24
Foreign government stock 107 109
Total fixed Intérest securltles 2a 1153 860
Property securities .. 64 [
Total securities o 1,821 1,600

As at 31 Dacémber 2018, nd investments were pledged under-repisrchase agreements-or cther arrangements (30 June:2018 nilk. A
maturity analysis for equity. securities, fund certificates, and property securities has not bigen presented bicauss theése investments
are liquid aséets and the.timing of réalisation i nat-ihown,

Fixed Interest Securitles

Maturlty dnalysls:

Under one year ' -7 8
Between one.and two vears. ] 8
Between two and three years 29 31
Between thres.and four years 9 8
Between four and five years 474 ‘5¥0
Greater thanfive véars . 629 235

4,153 860

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at banli and an-deposi asy 456
Foreign currency deposis. 2 . 3
Total cash.and cash equivalents a59. 461

Puwg
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
14 Principal Subsidlaries

The Grodp has an interest ini the fallpwing entities;

Soverelgn Sarvices Limited 00 -Administration services 3} December
Sovereign Superannuation Funds Limited 100 'S_uperarmuarion scheme manager 3t Decernber
Westside-Properties Limited 0 Asset feasing 31 December

Allenfities weré ingorporated’in Mew Zealand.

Sbyer’éfgn’ Suﬁé_'fahnuatlcn Funds Limited teased trading duning the perod; and was de-reqistered fram.the 'NEW'.Zea_ia_nd Company
Rigister on 30 January 2019,

15 Intangible Assets

Gross carrylng value

Balance at 1.july 2018 & .26 1 a3
#Additions - 5 - 5
Disposals and write-offs ) - . = . - -
Balance as-at-31-becember 2018 . 5 31 1 38
Accumulatad amortisation and impalrment losses

Balance at |- July 2018 - AN )] {(18)
Afnortisaticn.gxpense - - - (]}
Disposal$ and write-offs. - _ - - _ .
Balance as-at 31 December 2018 - £y a7 n 19}
Net carrylng value at 31 December 2018 o 5 14 - 19
‘Gross carryifig value

Balance'dt1 Joly 2017. T 23 5 36
Additions, - & 1 7
Disposals and write-offs. _ ) {3). (6) (i0)
‘Balance as at 30 June 2018/ ) & ) 1 33
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment losses.

Balsnca. at 1 Jufy 2017 - {16 ) (20
Amartisation expanse U] oy {D 3
Disposals.and writewnfis _ 1 - 4 5
Balance as at 30-June 2018 - - 7). S (8)
Nef carrying value at 30 June 2018 LB .8 - 15

16 Trade and Other Receivables

investrent receivables 18 15
Dutstanding premiums 19 7
Amounts due from related parties - 1
Amounts due from reinsurers 58 7

- Agent balances receivables 1 1
Othér assets _ & g
Total trade and other receivables. 102 N

Alitrade arid.other receivables have an expected settiement date of less than 12 m_ont’hs.

e pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months.ended 31 December 2018
17 Retirement Benefit Surplus.
Actuarial gsins and losses are recognised in full each period. |
SSRF is a'superannuation scherha with & defined bénefit section and 3 defined contritution section. The fast ful triannial actuarial review

vias completed in 2015, The rext 'tr.ienn'ial-acituarial_;ewew.'fs-_scheduied for 31 March 2019,

‘Reconchliation of amounts recognised in-the Statement of. Finanelat Posttion

-Predent value of funiled obtlgations 3 (3
Fair.valug of fund assets. . 2 9
Sueplus Y [
Adjustingnt for Iirnit 6 the use ofnet assets > (5) 3]
Total retirement beneflt surplus (inclusive of specified '

superannuation contribition withholding tax) ) 1 1

* SSRFs estimated net assets ot 31 December 2018 weré 59 miliGh (30.June 2018 59 million). but 3 targe part of the value of the surplas
assets cannot be brought ifto the Group's iinancial staternents. This-is because S3L {employer) js rict expected to be able to maké use'of

all the surpius assets for'its firfure em_ploy_'er contributions due {o the current size 6f SSRF's frembership.

18 Life Insurance and Life investment Contract Liabilities

Reconicitiation of mavements in policy Ilabliltles

Balance at the baginning of the-period. _ _ 73 100 7i0 739
Dacrease in llabhities recognised in-thé Income Statement, excluding

reinsuranice arid deferred.fee Infome reserve. (47 {27 22} 59
Investment contract fees o - - 8y -
-Detreasen-deferfed feq incoma-reserve re cognised n the

nconhe Statement _ _ - - ) (33
‘Deposit premium recognised as an inérease in'policy Labiities - g9 2
Claims recognised:as 3 decrease n policy biabilities” L - - (42) (106}
Totaf pollcy llabliitles ' 26 73 646 710

-Expected realisation maturlty anafysis

Expected reallsation of polley llabllittes as at 31 December 2018 {26) (194) 246 26
Expected realisation of policy liabliities as at'30 June 2018 ° oy (23} 106 73

The maturity value of life investment. contract fiabilities is_-déte'rn’;in'eci by tive Tair vajue of the linked assets at matunity date. Refer to note
33tor-a contractial maturity analysis of ife vestment contract hapfiities, '

The follawing table provides information on ihe net of liabriities ceded under reinsurénce. $33mil {30 Jung 2018 -'Sl{l’bn‘ll)_ and liabilities
arismg from reinsyrance contract, STQ8mit {20 June 2018 nil}. )

Balance at the beginning of the perlod: 10 13 - -
-Amount recagriised-in the Incorme statement {685]) @ - -
Total (B7Y) 10 T -
Maturity analysls .

Under ona yzar {38) g » -

Greater than oné year 637 T . K ﬁ
675, 10 -
L | —Pwg
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six monithis erided 31 December 2018
48 Life Insurance and Life Investment Contract Liabilities (continued)

Policy llablities related to guarantees
Palicy iabilities with a discretionary participation feature 664 649
Valuation of policy Habliities

Cash flows netof ta:

Future policy benefits B,606 8,071
Future bonuses: a 70
Future-expenses 3,402 2,207
Future planned margins ¢f revenue over expenses 1326 1,245
Future premiums’ {12,866} 12,.062)
Unvested policyhalder benefits 72 73
Deferred tax gross up {555) {531
Total policy Nabiiities 26. 73

Life investment contract policy liapdities with an investroent performance guarantee at 31 December 2018 were 56 million (30 June
-2018.57 milliori). C

Life Insurance contract Habillties future net-cash intlows.

‘AUnder ong.year 15 34
‘Between one and five years. 51z 0T
Greater than five years 2,615 3,977

3278 5362

The table above shows the estimated timing of undiscounted futyre net tash fiows-resulting from life-insurance contract habiities, This
includes gstimated future surrenders, tlaims and maturity bensfils, and bonuses, offset by expected future premiums and-relAsurance.
rec_overies_. All valugs sre undiscounted to.the feperting date using tha assurmed future investment eafning rate for each-product.

19 Deferred Taxation Liability

Balance at beginning of pericd 528 509
Recognised-in.the Incorme-Statément: 21 9
Total deferred taxation.[fablllty 549 528
Defefred taxatlon relates to:

Life insurance and life investment contract liagikities - 553 528
Losses avadatle for offset against future taxabfe income (51 -
Other 1 L
Total deferred taxation labliity 549 528
Deférred taxation recognised in the Income Statement:

Life insurance and life Investment contract liabilities 25, 18
Losses availahle for offset against future takable income- ) -
Other 1 1
Total deferred taxation récagnised [n the Income Staternent o2 19

En
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For thesix months ended 31 December 2018
20 Trade and Other Paydbles
B L ST R o ‘31 December ¢ 30 June
$ miflions L . . . 2o 201

Guistanding cigims- 58 B0
EXpense créditors. 14 12
Prepatd-premiurms: 9 9
Employee benefifs 9 14
investment craditors 5 2
Agent balances é 6
Amounis-due fo reinsurars 25 1
Amounts due to.related parties 19 .

Total trade and other payables 134 104.

As at 31 December 2018, allirade and other payables: have an ek_per:ted settlement date of less than 12:months, with the exceptian of

$2m of long term employee benefits (30 Jurie 2018 $2m).
A maturity analysis of curient and Aon-current financial iidbilities is presented in-note 33,

AlA operates a number of share Based cofiipensation schemes: Further inforination o these sharé based 'compensatic_n-scnemes is

distiosed in note 23ard note 24.

21 Contsibuted Capital

Issuad ordlyary share capltal
Balance at beginning of periad 540 540

Balange at-end of perlod 540. 540

Share capital includes 4,805,849 ordinary shares paid to §74.22 and 1'83_.'00_0;000_ ordinary shsres. gaid {o S1.00 {30 Jurig 2018
4,805,849 ordinary shares-paid to 574 22 and 183;000,0Q0 ordinary shares paid to 51.00).

Ail ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equatly in dividénds and-surplus.on viinding up,

Dividend paid on ordinary. shares for.the period ended 3t Deceniber 2018 Was S460m (30 June. 2098 $13Imy, This aquates to $2.45 per
Shrarg {30-June 2018 50.70).

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018
22 Capital Management

“Thie objectives of the Group witn regard to-the management-of camtal adequaty are:

(i} mantain. 3 levet of tafget surplus which creates a boffer over minimum requiatory capital while stil alowing foreffioent use of
capltal

Gif maintain stronq capita base to cover the inherent risks of the busingss; and

(it stpport the future development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value.

The SACL Buard nas uitimate responsisitity for compliance with the. soivency standard &nd managing capital. ‘The. SACL Board
approves the capital policy and midrmum:capital levels and limits. Minimum capilal levels are set based on raintaimng a target’ surplus
in excess of solvency margin reéquirements under the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business issued-in accordance with IPSA. .
tnder ifs !:r.ence, the RENZ requirés SACL to'hold a selvency margin of at least 50 (30 June.2018'50) for each’ lite fund. SACL has-twa
furids. the Statutory Fund-and-the Other F und,

If-the SACL, Board has. reasonable groundsto belisve that 5 tailure to maintain-a sofvency: margin in ‘githiet lite fund is likély to-preur at-
any time- within the next 3 years, the uliely falure must be reported to thie RBNZ as.sooni as is reasonsbly practicable. Comphance with
these requirements.is-a. continuous obfigation,. As 3 minimurn, calculations mus! e underiaken twice.a year, at' 51K, monthly infervas,
and reported to the, RBNZ

Target surplus is- a capital buffer ‘held on tép of reguiatdry requirements to enisure the likelihood -of a breach. of requlatary
requirements is at a level congistent with SACL's risk-appetite. The Iével of target surplus takes account of management assessments
of ‘actual risk-and: forecaats/stress testlng af future capital reqmrements The SACL BARC approves the methodology and basis for’

determnining farget suUrplus.
The solvericy posifion-of SACL o the twa life funds i§ as follows;

As at 31 December 2018

Actual soivency capital. i28 123 251
Mirimurm:solvency.capital - 10S 105
Solvency margln 12B B8 . 146
Solvehcy ratlo N/A 7%  240%
As at 30 June 2018

‘Actual solvency capital 573, 107 680
Msnimurr: solvency Capital 497 98 595
Solvency margin _ 76 9 85
Sclvency fatio 5% 109% 4%

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the six months ended 31 December 2018

23 Related Party Transactions and Balances
Daring the:six mgnth period ended N December-2078; the Groun has. entered Into, or had -in place, the fbl!o_w_ing_ related party
transactions.

8) Immadiate and ultimate coritrolling party
SACL immediate ho:iding_-company_is AIA_-Soyer_eign_ Limited. AlA international Limited (domiciled in Bermudal.owns 180% of AlA
Sgvereign Limited. AlA International Limitéd-New Zealand branch is refated to AlA Interpational Limited, whose immediate holding
company is-AlA Company Limited. The ultimate holding company s AIA Group Eimited a company incorporated-in Hong Kong, and
listed on The Hang Kong Stock Exchange.

by Key management personel:
ey management persannel have bagn identified as memkers.af the New Zesland Group executive committee: More information
for key'managerent perscnel is disclosadin rote 25, -

¢} Share based compensation’
information on share hased compansation is outlined 1n note 24,

o) Transactions with related parties
The Group éntered info-transactions with its-related parties inthe normai course of'-'busfness_,"The-aggr_egate-ampun: of mcorne and.

gxpenses. afising:fram thesi transaztions diring the reporting pericd with related parties was.as foligws:

Related Party Transactions

Expenses .

Paid ta AlA NZ Branch for recharge.costs of 'integration..admmist__rative service and staffing 1 “

Paid.to.AlA Australia for recharge costs of groug integration 8 -

9 -

Related Party Balances

Liablfifles _

Trade and other payables to.AlA NZ Branch 1 -

Trade and other payables ko AlA Australia Lirhited 8 ) -
9 ) -

Refar to the Statement of Changes in- Equity and note 21 for detaiis-of dividends paid to the Shareholdsr (AlA Soversign Limitag):
Priod perlod Related Party Transactions and Balances '
Prior to.the acquisition by AlA internationsl Limitéd, the'Group's refated. parlies included;

o The Commonwealth Bank of Australia Group {the Overseas Banking Group) is domiciled 1n-Austratia and comprises . CBA, the -

woridwide activities oF CBA, and its controlfed entities; and.

o The CBA New Zealénd Baniing Group (the NZ Banking Group) refers to-all New Zeatand banking operétions of ‘the. Overseas
Banking Group. prifartly.comprising ASB Bank Lirited {A5B).. )

The above related parties ceased being refated on 2.July. 2018 wheh the Group was acquired by Al&. Therefore, the diselosures below
anly refate to-the year ended 30 June 2018"

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered ntothe following transactions with related parties;

income
Interest recewed from NZ Banking Group 4
‘Dividends received from Overseas Banking Group 5
Fass received from NZ.Banking Group 2
Net realised/unreallsed gairis on fund vertificates - managed by the Overseas Bankm_g_ Group- 2
Met reatised/unreatised gains on-fund cerbiicates mansged by the NZ Banking Group 38
Net ceslised/unrealised (iosses}/gams on derwatives issued by the NZ Barking Group 91
' 29
Expenses
Paid to Overseas Bankm_g Group for Investrnent management services 1
Paid to NZ Bariking Group for administrative services 12
Paid fo-NZ Baniting Group for insurance comenission’ 44 =N
’ 57 . %J

Sovermqh’.Ass:;rance Co_m_pany Limited.and SGbsidiaries
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23 Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued}

Refated Party Balances.

‘Overseas Banking Group.

Assets

Securities® 42

Recoverable expenses feldted fo salé of business to-AlA 4,

NZ Banking Group

Assels

Cash aiid cash equivalents 184

Securities* 328

Trade and other receivables, 4
513

Llabitities

Derivative I'rab[!i_ﬂes 4

e

* Thiese securities balances represent investmenis i external fund certificates issued by the funds managed by the Overseas Banking
Group and the NZ Banking Group. The underlying -exposure.to relatec party securities s Sim as at 30 June 2018,

The Group Is the sponsor, investment manager and assists with.administration af one oft-batance sheet employee supérannuation
schiemne {refer note 17).. i

During the pariod ended 30 December. 2018, the Group participated inthe .Cd_fonial Mutual Life Assurance Socigty Limited (CMLA]
catastrophe.cover reinsuranice programme, Refernote 31 vRisk Managerrient Policies” under Insurance Risk.

24 Share Based Compensation
Stack compensation plans

During the: s manth period ended 3t December 2018, AlA Group Uimited (uitimate parent) made no awards of restricted share uriits
{RSUs} to employees. directors-and offieers unter 1k Share Optign Scheme (S0}, the Restricted Share Unit Schemae (RSU Schieme} and
the Empidyee Share Purchase Plan {ESPF).

RSU Scheme

‘Under the RSU scheire, the vesting of the-granted RSUs is gongitional upon the eligibié participarits remalning in employrrent with the
Group during the retrospective vesting gerlods. RSU grarits are vested aither entirely after a specific periot of time or In tranciies over
the vesting period. if the RSU grants-are vested In tianchas, zach vesting trancheis accounted for as.a separate grant for the purposes
.of recogrising the expense ovér the vesting period: For certain RSUs, performance conditions are alsd attached which incltide both
-market and nan-market conditions. RSUs subject to gerformance conditions are refeased to the employees at the end of the vesting
peritid:depending onthe actual achievement of the perfarmarnce conditions. During, the vesting.petiod, the eligible participants are nat
“antitled to-dividends of the-underlying shares. - The maximum number, of shares that ¢an be granted under the scheme is 301,100,000
r.epre'senting-appmximatelv 2:5.per cent of the niumber-of shares onssue.of ATA at 31 December 2018,

Restricted sharé unlts

Gutstanding at beginning of financiat period/year - -
Granted - -
Wested or exercised - -
Forfeited or exgired _ - _ .
Outstanding at end of finanetal perlod/year - -
Share Option Scheme

The objactive'of the Share Option.(50) Schemes to align eligible participants' iniérests with those of the shareholders of AIA by

allowing eligible participants to share in the Value created at the point they exercise their options. 50 awards are vested either entirely

after a speclfic period of time or in tranches over the.vesting period, during which, the gligible participants are required to remain‘n
_employment with the Group.  If the SO grants are vested in tranches, each vesting tranche is‘accounted for as.a separate.grant forthe 5
purposes of reccgnising the expense.over thie vegting period. The granted share options expire ten years from the date-of grant, The E

total number of stiares under options that canbe grarited nder the-scheme is 301100,000, representing aporoximatety-2.5 per cent o3 -
the nu_m'b_er of shares inissue of AlA at 3t Decernber 2018. i

1ﬁfq'rrhati'on about share options outstanding andShara options exercisable by the Group's employees-ad at the end of the reparting
peried is as follows: Sovergign Assurance Company-Lirnited and Subsidlaries 30
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24 Share Based Com_pensatlon fcontinved)

§ tiouisands -

‘Share Optiornis |
Cutstanding at beginning of financiat period/ysar . - - -
Granted - - “ R
Exercised - . - .
Transier out - . u .
Gancelted - - - .
Forfeited or.expired - . - L
Qiitstanding at end of financial pericd/year - i - .
Share bptions exertisable at end'of fifancial periodfyear - - : -
Weighted average remaining contractuat lfe {years). - . . -

Mo -share options were outsfanding as of 31 Becember 2018,

Employea Share Pyrchasa Flan (ESFPE) o
Under the ESPP, eligible employees of the Group.can purchase ordinary shares of AIA with qualified employee contributions and AIA will
~award ofle matehiing restricted stock purchase unit to-them at the end of the vesting period for each two shares purchased thratigh the
qualified employee contributions eaniribition sharésy. Contribution shares.are purchased from fhe-open market. During the vesting
periad, the eligible eriplbyees must hold the contribution shares purchased dusing the plan cycle.and remainemployed by the-AlA Group.
"Thé level of qualified emplovee cohtribution is firnited tonot more fhsn 8% ofthe annual basic-salary subjéct to'a:maximom of
HKSHT,000 per annum, The awarded matching restricted stock purchase units are.expected to be settied in.equity. Far the six month
period ended 3t December 2018, eligible eriployées of the Group paid NZD$16,631 (30-June 2018: $Hil ) to purchase 11459 ofdinary shares

(30 June 2018: NIl ordinary shares) of AlA,

Vatualion methodology
-AlA utilises & bincmial lattice model to.calculate the fair value of the share options grants, a Monte-Cafto-simulation model and/or
discounted. cash flow téchnique ta calculate the fair valug of the RSU.and ESPR-awards, tawng into.account the terms and canditiohs.upon
which the awards were granted: The price volatifity is estimated on the basis of implied volatility of the AlA'sShares which is based on.an
analysis.of historical data since they ara traded in the Stock Exchange of Hahg Kong and takes into-consideration the-historcal vofatiity of
peer companigs. The expacted life of the options-is dgrived from the-autplt of the valuation model and s calcidtated based on.an analysis
‘of-expected exercise behavior-of tha AlA Group employees: The estirmate-of market condition for-perférmance based RSUs s based'an
one-year historical data preceding the gran: date.

Risk:free interest rate 2% 00211 1.35%- 2.27%

Volatility 20% 0.2 0.2
Dividend yield 2% 0.015 (e R0
Exerciseprice (HKS). N/A N/A. NIA
Option life tin years) /A N/A N/A
Expected life (in years) NI N/A Mia
welgh'ted-averaqe Tair valye peroption f unit at miedsurement date {HKS) NIA N/A a2

The weighted average share price for granted SO vatustion.is SN for the six.month perjod ended 3t December 2018 as ho-options vere

awarded, (2018: SNiIlL.

Regognised compensation cost
The:total recognised compensation cost (riet of.gxpacted forteiturés) reiated to varous shiare based corfipensation awards.granted urider
thig ESPP-Tor the six month period ended 31 December 2018 is $18,5631 (30 June 2018: Sl ’

Eh
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25 Directors and Key-Management_Eersonnel |

.Shart term employee banefits 5 5
Directors fees: _ - 1§
Total dlr_actqrs-anclfkey management personnel compensation . 5 6
Provisions for short term benafits 2 4.
Provisions for long-term benefits 1 1

‘Key management personnel are de?_ined-as membersof the sxecutive leadership team.

Execufivesn AlA Austraha perform cértaln functions for thie Group. The compensationto these executives s patd by '
Al& Austraha, which makes na recharge td-the Group.

Infarmation In relation td Share bésed-compensation for Directors aid Key Managerfient personngl is disclosed in note 24.

26 Leasing Commitments and Capital Commitments

The following non-cantellable-operating lease commitments existég-at the-end of the period::

Within one year 5 5
Betwéen.ong and five years. 1B 22
Qvar five years 9 12
TotalJeaslng commitrents - 39

Aol the Group's [eases are.classified as operating leases as a significant portion &f the risks and rewards of cwnership are retained by
thelessor.

On & October 2005:-5SL signed. an 18-year lease o Sovereign House, its head office pramises at Smales Earm, Auckland. The lease
term commenced in October 2007. SSL has a number of other properties under aparating. leases. The leases have a varlety of lease
periods: and & humber of the feases contain options™to renew. Payments. made under operating leases are charged to the incoime
Statement on.a stralght-fine biasis over the period of thefease: '

The Group will sdopt-NZ IFRS 16 from | January 2019, Refer to nate 1 for more information on the impact of adopting NZ IFRS 16..

Capital commitments
The group has no material capital commitments as at 3 December 2018 {30 June 2018 nil),

27 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group's finangial-assets and. fi__nanctaﬁ lizbilitles are measured on an on-going basis eitter at fair value or amortised cost.

The fair vale of a financlal instrument is the price that would be received to sell a financial asset, or pald to.transfer a financial Hability,

int an orderly transaction between market particlpants at the measurement date, '

‘A significant number of financial Instruments are carried on the Statement of Financial Position at fair valug. Thi best evidenca of falr

value is.a guoted market price in an active farket. Therefore, where possible, fair value is'based on quoted market prices. Where a-

quoted market price for & financlal strument {s:not available, its fair value i3 bdsed on presenit value estimates or other valuation

technigues based an current market canditions, These: vaIuatioh technigues rely on market observable inputs wherever possible, .or in-
fimited instances, rely on ifputs.which are unobservabie bLit_ -are reasonable assumptions based on market conditions.

There arethree levels in the hierarchy of fair-vallie' measurements which are based on the inputs used to measure fairvalues:

o ievell inputs-are quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or financial kabilities that the Group
can access, Levellassetscomprises

- Equity and property securities measured based-on the bid market price budted by the stock-exchange.
- External fund tertif_l_c_at_es-measured based on the unadiusted unlt price provided.from the fund manager.
- Bank bonds and government honds méasured basad or a-quoted bid market.price-or third party pricing information,

@ tevel 2:where quoted market prices are not avaitable, fair values have been estifnaitei_:l using present value or other valuation:
technigues using-inputs that are observable for the financial asset or financis! fabifity, either directty or indirectly. Level 2 assais
camprise: . _ _ _

- Externai fund certificates measured based an the most recently avaitable unit pricé from the fund:manager at the time. of
valyation, adjusted appropriatefy using market observable benchmarks ta accurately reflect the fair velué,

- Corporate honds measured based on third garty pricing information, ) _ E

- Held for trading. foreign exchange tontracts measired based on raarket observable forgign currency: inputs sourced from.

- thicd party pricing informatton. pwc

‘»  Vevel3: Fairvelugs aie estimated Using inputs that are unotiservable for the financial asset or financisf liability:
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27 Fair Value of Financial Inséruments (continued)

(a) FalrValue of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Tne followng. table. presents ‘an -analysis by: level in-the fair value hierarchy af the fair valug. measurements of financial
Instrurents that are recognised and measured at fair value on.a recurring basis.

$millong. .- " S T T : Levell  Level2  Level3  Total .
As at 3t December 2018

Financlal assets

Seturities _
Equity securities and fund certificates 197 407 . 604
Fixed interest securities 1139 14 » 1,153
Propeity securities, 64 - - 64
Berivative as5ets - LI - 4
Total financlaf assets measured at falr value 1,400 425 - 1,825
Financlal Habliitles
Derivative habtlities- - 2 . 2
Life invastment coritract liabilities _ - 645 - 646
Total tinancial llahitittes measured-at falr valug - 648 - 648
.Asat 30 June 2018
Financial assets:
‘Securities _
Equity securities and fund certificates 213 46t - 674
_Fixed interest securities a47 13 . 860
Property securities _ 66 - . . 6B
Total financial assets measured at falr value 1,26 474, - 1,600
Financial liabilitles
Derivative liabilifies - 4 - 4
Life:invesimeny contract liabities. - 710 . - TIO
Total financial Hablllties measured at fair value } - 714 - 714.

(b} FalrVaiue of Financlal Instruments Not Measured at Falr Value

The following tabie sets.out and compares the fair values of financial instruments not'measured ai f&ir value with Sheir carrying
arnounts, '

As-at 31 December 2018

Flnanclal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 359 .389°
Trade-and other receivables 102 102 .
Total financlat assets not measured at fair vakze- 461 46t
Financlal Lskilitles

Trade and other payables 16 __ &

Total financla! llabilitles not measured at falr value: e 1i6

S Pwe
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27 Fair Value of Financial Instruments {confinued)

(b} Falr Value of Financial liistruments Not Medsured at Falr Value (conthived)

As at 30 Juna.2018

Financlal Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents’ 461 461
Trade-and other receivables &0 &0
Total financtal assets not measured at fair value 521 521.
Financial Liahilittes B '

Trade and other payabies . Bl 51
Total financial Habillties not measured at falf value. 8 81

28 Categories of Financial Instruments

ng

The following tables surmarise. the carrying amounts-ang fair velues of categories. of financizl assets and financial liatlities. Refer to
note 1tf) for a'description of the categorias and how fair values are estimated.

gnitio g Ll ta

As a¥ 3t December 2018

Financlal assets. _

Cash andg cash equivalents - - 359 - 359 .359-
Tradg and other receivables- - - 102 - 02 102
Securifies - 1,821 - - 1,821 1,821
Derfvatlive assiels 4 - - - 4. 4
Total financiai assets 4 1,821 . 461 - 2,286 2,286
‘Financial Habitles _

Trade.and.cther.payables - - - 1ne A 116
Derivative fabillties 2 - - L 2 2
‘Life investment contracts - 646 - - 646 645
Total financlal Habllities . 2 646 - 16 764 764
As at 30 June 2018

Financial assets _

Cash aiid.cash equivalents - 461 . 461 461
Trade and other receivaiiles - - [ - B0, _ 60
‘Securities - %600 . - 1,600 1,600
Tutal financlal assets 1600 521 - 2721 2,021
Financial lsbjlitles.

Trade and other payables: - - - a1 81 81
Derivative liabifities 4 - - - 4 4
Life investment.coniracts - T - . 7i0 7i0
Total financial liaklllties 4. o - 8t 795 795

HB
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29 Asset Quality-

The Group hias rio material impaired or past due assets.

Credlt Quallty.of Financtal Assets that are hot Past Die or Impaired

Cash and Cash Equivaients _

Tht_a Standard and Podrs (S&P) credit ratings for the Group’s major cash holdings are;
' BT R s R : L .__.3OJ_0ne

RS 2018, 2018,
ASE Bank Limited Al AA-
‘Westpac New Zealand Limited Ad
ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited. AA-
Citibark NA At
Securifies

The Group holds fixad intérest securihes-issued by counterparties.with the foliowing S&P cradit ratings:
: e ‘- +.31December - RCT) SR

304une X ber

* Investment-linked*.

Ratings

AAA - - 4. 5 4 5
AA+ <8 3 1,075 7y 1103 80a
AA 2 2 a0 3z 32 34
Ab- g 10 . - ] 10
A+ 2 2 - - 2 2
A 1 1 “ - 1 1
A~ 2 - - - _ 2 2
Total {lxed kiterest securities 44 48 o9 812 1,153 B6O

* For Iiwestmenizlinked assets, the liability to policyhalders js linked ta the performance of and'vé_fue: of the assets that back fhese

liabilities, The shareholder has o direct exposure t6 any risk in the assets which back these fiabifities,
Credif ratings are not provided foi-equity and property secunties because they are not subject to credit risk,

-Derivative Financiat instruments

The counterparty for the Group's derivative tinancial instruments at balance date 15 ASB Bank Limited:

;’nvestmmz‘ﬁeceiwabff.is _ _ . _
This balance comprises tutstanding sates, accrued-interest and obistanding dividénds, Al culstanding sales have subsequently been

settled. whe credit ratings of counterpartiés for which accived interest arises are disclosed in thie table abave. Credit risk associated with

outstandify dividends is deemed tg be negligibe.

Ouistanding Fremivms ) _ _
Quistanding premiums. are-prifnarily. aged less than 90 days, and ini thie case of patticipating policies; Have surrendar values that arg’
equalto or greater thari tie 'pfemlum:arpount cutstanding.

Anroupls Due from Reinsurers _

Thie credit ratings for ihe Group’s major reinsurers ard ;

‘General Reinsurance Life Australia Limited 5&p AAY S&p AA

RGA Reinsurance Company of Australia Limited S&P. AA- S&P Ab-
Swiss Re Lite and Health tAustralia) Limited S&P AA- 58p AA-
Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia Limited. 55p An- S&P Ad-
Lioyd's BAP As S&F A+
Assicurazioni Generali S.R.A.- AM Best A AM Best A
AlA Reinsurance Lirated S&P AA- N/K. Nfa

Rl
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30 Disaggregated information

NZ F RS 4. requires & life-insurer to disclose disaggregated information for sach fife- fund:. as defined in the solvency standéards under
IPSA. Disaggregated information far major compenents of the Group's fife funds are prasented in tha tables bélow.

For the six months ended 31 December 2018

Premim revenug a8 1 319 46
Irvestment revenue 25 (23) 2 2
{lzimis.expense- 93 - 193 3
Other operating expenses ‘128 4 132 15
Investment revenue'paid or allocated to poticyholders ‘9 {23 14y -
Nat profit before tax 38 b 42 1
et profit after tax 14 a 17 8
Net distributions matle from furnds (462) - (452) 2

Forthe year ended 30 June 2018

Premuim revenue 829 1 &30 Ba
investment revenue’ iz 69 14 -
Claims expense 340° - 340 55
Other operaling expenses 256. 8 264 3
invéstinent revenve paid or allocated to policyholders 53 69 122 -
Net profit before tax uv 5 122 13
Net profit after tax 74 7 86 10
Net distriputions made from funds (ns) - GE)] {16}
As at 31 December 2018
Life insurance contract liabilitiesf(assets) 145 - 145 (ivey
Life Investrnent contract liabfiities - 646 646 .
Other lighilities, 646 [&)] 637 743
Retained losses directly attributable to o
sharehalders (250) 5 {245) (7
Investregrit assets 1,279 542 1,82t -
Othér assets. {35B) 803 445. 74
As-at30 June 2018
Life insurance contract liablities/{assats) 183 - 183 110y
Lite investrnent cantract fabifiies . TI0 710 -
Othier liabliities. 591 4 592 32
Retained prafits/{losses) directly attrbutable -
to sharehalders- 197 3 200 (7).
Investment Assets a9t ‘609 1,600 -
‘Other Assels 370 90 460 70
pwe
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30 Disaggregated Information (continued)

IPSA requires a life insurer to allocate the operating profi orloss of & statutory fund of a category of business of a statutery fund. The.
regulations define two: categories of Busingss; participating business and non-participating business. SACL classifies” all its life
insurance business as. participating business or nen-participating business in order to ensure the appropriate aliocation of profit, as
shown below: ' ' '

Lo Lifi?._iiisﬂranca Li
coo L) contracts -

$milliens .~ -

For the six months ended 31 December 2018
Participating riet profit after tax. [} - 1 -
Non-participating net profit after tax 13 3 16 8
Net profit allocated to shareholders 4. T3 17 8
-Forthe year endéed 30 June 2018

Participating net profit after tax 3 - 3 -
Non-participating net profit after tax 76 7 .83 . 10
Wet profit allocated to shareholders ' 79 7 B6 G

S
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31 Risk Management Policies
Introduction
The Group is exposed-to risk througit its financial assets, fnancial habilitiés, rensurance assets and ife Insuranca contract lisbilities, Risk-

managerent policies focus on ensuring cash flows from assets are sufficient.to fund obligations arnising from life insurance and life
investment contracts: The primary risks are those of insurance, credi, market, iuidity; cperational and strategic business risk.

The Group's risk-function is the responsibiity of the.Chief Risk Cfficer (CRD}, who reports to'the Chief Exetutive Officer; The Group's
risk management strategy.is set by ihe:Board through the BARC. This cornriitiee comprises miembers of the Board.and is chaired hy.an
independeént merber -of the Board, The CRQ is responsiblé for the impleménitation of the Group's fisk management sirategy and &l
executives have responsibility for the day to day management of risk acrossthe Group..

The Group has managerient structures and information systems to- mianage: individual risks, has separated risk initiaticn -and
montoring tasks. where feasible; and subjects alt material systems to reguiar review, Peniodic assessments of-alk righ managemeént
systems; key business processés and applications.are undertaker by thesinternal sudit funictian.

The Group conducts sengitivity. analysis to-quantify the exposure [ risk af-changes in the key tunderlying variables such as (nterest rate,
currency rate, mortality, morbidity and inflation. The valuations intluded in the reported resuiis snd the Group's-bestestimate of future
performance. are calculated using certain assumgptions about these variables. The movement in any key variabie will impact the
perforrmance and net assets of the Group and as such representé arsk,

The sensitivity analysis.in the risk categories-that folfow, is based on changes i econerhic conditions that are considered rea_son_ably
possible at the reporting date. The correlation of assumptions will have-a significant effect in deterrnining the ultimate: profit impact,
but to demonstrate the wmpact of 3 spetific assumption charigg, modelling had fo be done on the basis that alt ofher assumptions were
held-constant. ) C )

Thie foltowing sections gescribe the risk managernent framework compongnts:
Operational and $trategic Business Risk

Operational risk is defined .as the risk 6f economic gain or dgss resulting from inadequate of failed interng! processes -and
methadolngies, people, systems or.external events.

Strategic business r_is'k Is defined as the risk of £conomic gain or joss resulting from changes i the business envifonment caused by
-gtaniomic, competitive, social trend or requlatory factors.

£ach business fanager is responsible for the identification and assessment of these risks and for maintaining appropriate internal
-gonirals, snd'is supported by the Group's governance structures; operational risk ranagement framawork and cperationai risk policies.
Business Continuity Management

.Busifiess Continuity Management {BCMY within the Group involves the: development, mainfenance ang testing of action pisns.to
‘manage business disruption rigk. This ensUres that business processes continue: with minimial adverse irapact. on customers, staff,
products, services and brands.

BCM constitutes.an essential companent of the Group's risk managerngnt process by proviging & cantroled responsg to potefitial
operational risks-that could have a significant impact on the Group's. critical processes and revenue streams. it includes. both cost
effective responses to mitigate the impact of risk-events or disasters and crlsis management plans to respond fo crisis events.

A BCM programme includinig plan davelopment, testing and education is 1 place-acrgss all divisions and inclides technojogy disaster

TRCOVETY planning. )

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit-function reporks-t_o-_AIA.Aust_r_alia L'imi_ted_l-ie_ad-of Internal Audit for Australia-and New Zealand.

Interriat audit provides én independent assurance service designed to assist the Group in achieving its objectives by bringing a-
systematic and discipfined approach to improving the effectiveness-of risk managermant systemns. tha framework of controls, and

govemance prodesses, Operationa!, compliarice, financial and systemns reviews of the Group's operations are performed based on an

assessment of risk. The independent internal audit function is u!tim_a_lgry_accountable to the.Boardthrough the BARC.

Thie BARE fmeets on a regular basis to consider financial reporting, internal control, and corporate governance issies. it réviews the:
interim and annual-financial statements, the activities of the internal ‘and. external audifors, and. monitors the relationship between
ranagement-and the external suditors.

et
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31 Risk Management Policies (continued)
insurance Risk
Insurance risk’s risk; ofher than linancial risk, that |s__-t_fénsferred from the holder of & contract fo the'issuer.

The Group's abjectives I maitsging risks arising from insurance business are:: _

iy Toensure ingirance. risk-is managed In accordance with the principles set out in the Risk Appetite Statement, The Risk Appetite
Statement destribes the Group'$tolérance and intolerance to key risks.via a set of statements ang prin€iples. '

i} Toensurethat an appropriate rettrn on capital fs made in retarn for sccepting insurance risk.

(i) Toensure that strong iniernal contrals are-embetded within the busness.to mi!ig'_ate.under\xff_i_ti_ng risk,

(v} To ensure that internal and extérmnal soivency and capital requirernents are met
& Touse reinsurance asa companent of irisurance risk management strategy.

Varigtions. in claim levels will affect reparted profit apd shareholder's equity. The iipact fay be magnified i the variation leads to a
change in actuarial assumptins. which “canriot be absorped within the present. vaite of planined .margins for a group of related.
products; ' ' '

Insuranee risk may arise through the reasséssment &f the incidence of claims, the trend of future clams and the effect of unforeseen
disesses or epidemics, in addition, in the case of morbidity; the fime to recovery may be longer than assumed, Insurance risk is,
controiled by ensuring underwriting standards adequatély identify potential risk, retaining the right to dmerid premiums on rist policies
‘where appropriate and through the use of reinsurance; The experience of the Group's.life insurance busingss is reviewed regularly.

Concentrations of insurance riskarjse due t&;

»  Largesumsassured on tertain ridividuats,

*  Geographic concentrations tue ta employee group schemes. During the periad gnded 31 December 2018, SALL participated in.the |
Colonial Mutual Life Assurance Society Limited (CMLA). catastrophe cover reinsurance programme which provides caver of
AUDS90 milion far single event claims in‘excess.of AUDS20D million. )

»  Geographic toncentrations due ta'a pandemic affecting lives in a certain country or region. Buring the pericd the Groug cancelizd

its pandemic cover as & nevreinsurance arrangément reduced the refained sum at risk significantly, making it extremely unlikely
that the. pandemic cover-could ever be clatmed upon,

Terms and ¢onditions.of fife Insurance contracts

"The nsture of téfms of life insurance contracts written 15 stich that ertain esternial var::a_b'r_es_' can-be identified on which relajed cash

fiows for ¢laim payments depend, The table below brovides an overview of these;

Non-par_tit‘ipat_mg Wite  Benefits pald on death, ihealth or Benefits, defined by the life- - Mortality

insurance confracts  miaturity that are fixed and insuradce confract, are ~ Morbidity

with fixed.and guaranteed and not at'the determined by the contract and - Discontinuance rateg
guaranteed ferms discreticn of thd issuer. Fremums  are not directly affected By the

{termiife.anid disability, may be guaranteed through the life petfarmante of underlying assets

major-medical) ‘of the contract, guarantesdfora  or the perferrance of the

specified term or vartable at the gontracts as-awhole.
‘nsurer's.discreifon.

Life insyrance These poiicies-include a clearly: Benefits ahising from the - Mortaity

confracts with defined.initial gusranteed sim discretionary participation feature - Morbudity

discretionary assured which is payable on Geath. are basedqnthe performance of - Market risk

participating benefits Thegueranteed-amountis a'specified pool of contracisor & - Discontinuanée rates :
{endowrnent and whole muitiple Of the dmouiit that is ‘specified type of chntract. - Market retlrns on undarlying ‘assets
of fife). ' increased throughout the duration. '

of the poltciy by the addition o
requilar bontises annially which,
.once added; are'not removed,
Regular bonuses are alsp Sdded
retrospectively.

Lif2 anniity contracts  These policies;provide guaranteed  The amount of the payment is set - Longevity
regular payments to the life at inception of the poiicy. - - Market returns on underlyinig assets
assured, ' ' '

Pwe
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91 Risk Management Policies (continued)
Sensitivity ta insurance risk
nsurance risk-is measured by using sensitivity analysis to show the effects.on equity and profit. The below sensitivities are calculated
_based on 3l other assumptions remnaining unéhanged.
Mortality rates .
For life nsurance con_traéts.- gre'ate'r mortality rates would lead t highar levels of clams otedrring socner than anticipated, increasing
- associated clams cost and; therefore reducing profit, and-shareholder's equity. This i offset by Increased annuitant mortality which
wopld reduce expacted future anhurty payments and therefore reduce life insurarice contract lizbilities.

Marbidity rates

The cost of heatth-rélated.cldims depénds on-both the ncidence of policyholders becoming il ahd the duration with winch they remaln
fll. Higher thar-expected Incidence and-duration Would be likely to increase claim costs; reducing profit and shiareholder's equity,

Discontinuahce
The impact of the discortinUance rats. assumption depends on a:range of factors inclucing the type of contract, the surrendgr value

basis (where applicable) and the durafion in force. For. example, an increaseé i discanitnuanre -rates at earlier durations of life-
insurance contracts usually has.a negative effect on performance and net assets Haviever, due to-the interplay between the factors,
there is not alivays.an adverse cutcome to piicfits from anincreasé in discontinuance rates. There js an additional negative impact for

a detenioration.in discontinusnce rates due ta tha lapse penalty under a new reinsurance treaty.

The table Below Ilt_i.:_strales.the' sensitivity of reported net profit-and loss after tax and equity'to changes. inirisurance risk assumptions!

Ingurance rlsks

Before. After "Before After
_relnsurance  relnsurance relnsurance’  reinsurance

Miortafity {imipfovernent by.10% ' 17 7 16 7

Delerloration by 0% (22¥ {13) 20 {3
Morbidity Improvement by 10% 9 4 B 5,

Deterioration by 10% (38) {(33) (65) 62)
Discontinuance  Imiproverent by: 2096 g 1 9 1

Deterioration by 20% {12) (t8) -4z} {8)
Expenses fncrease by 10% () (3) 3 (3

Decrease by 10% 3 3 2 2
Credit Risk

Credit tisk is the potential risk for lass arising from failure of a counterparty to mest their contractual bbitgations.

Cradit risk principally arises within the Group. from fnvestments of sharehelder funds of-funds where the ‘shareholder pa'rtiqipa'tes- n’
investmént returas in cash and fixed interest securitigs, and reinsurer payment ohligatigns Credi risk also arises-from lang to'agents,
foreign currency: coniracts and trade receivables. No collateral exists for any of the -_s_e_c_uriti’es. held by the: Group. The madrmimcredit,
riskc associated viith each class of recognised financial asset held by the Group is the carrying value, The Group has arcredit policy that
‘eovers the Epproval and management of all-credit risk.

Investment coricentrations for shareholder funds are managad withir estabiished. guidefines and limits set by-the Asset and Liability.
Comrmiites (ALCO).. Some. criteria are referced tothe SACL BARC for approval. ‘Guidelines and limits are. set for security credit ratings
-and aggregate exposure ta any. singie ‘geographic-region ar counterparty as documeénted within the jnvestrnant management.
agreernent, '
Reinsurance is entered into for the purposé of Fisk transfer. The cradit risk inherent-in reinsurance arrangements is managed by
estatlishing minimuimn credit staridards for reinsurers.

For- investment finked :contracts the investments credit risk 1S appropriate for @agh particular product and the risk is borne by the
policyholder, There is no significant credit risk assumed by the Group, The impact on he fair value of life invéstment contract liabillties
due to changes in {redit risk Js"nil (30 Jurie 2018 nill} except to the-extent that the market value bf securities backing life investment
contract lisbiltties is affected by changes in credit Fisk. ADY suct credit risk impact s reflected in the movement of securitiés balances
during the year. '

To ensble harmonisation with AIA Group Financial and Investrment Risk governance; BARC approved ‘Sovereign ALCO o be-
tisestablished on the _25-'Oc_to_ber_2018_and-ba-repiaced ny the Financial Risk Committee {FRCYand the Investmient Commiites.(C).

The credit ratings of counterparties are disclosed in note 29..

Liquidity Rlsk o
Liquidity risk fs the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in miseting obligations aisoctated with financial lishilities that are settlad
by defivering cash or anibther financial asset. '

‘Managernent of fiquidity risk is desighed to ensure that the-Group has the ability to méet its fifancial obligations.as they fal _dqe,pwe
The Group manages this risk by.holding  pool-of readily tradable investment assets-and depasits-on cak, '
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31 Risk Management Policies (continued)
“The matunity of Jife insurance and life investment contract liabilities arg disclosed in nofes 18 and 32 respectively,
‘Market Risk

Marketrisk is the risk that the faif value or future cash Hows of a-financial Instrument wil fluctuate because of changes ir-market:
prices,

Market risk arisgs from the miismateh between assets -and _Ifél:_lff_it_]es_, The Group is exposed fo market risk on. diverse financial
instruments including interest’ bearing assets, foreign currency investrments, equities. and denvative Instruments: For-gach distingt
category.of habiities, a separaie portfolio of assets ks maintained and investment mandatés are sétthat are appropriate for each,

A sgnficant Proportion of assets areheld for investrent tinked _'pdijc‘:ses-where_ ‘Market risk I8 transferred 16 the pcticy_ho’tde_r_.- The
Group earns fees-on investment linked policies that are based onrthe amount of, assels invested and it may recejve lower fees shouid
rrarkets fall. Assef atiocation ferinvestrent.iinked policies:is decided i accordance with the poficyholders' fuRd selections.

arket rish: arises on discretionaty participation businass as these contratts have investment guarantees. Risk 1s mitigated by using
"BRappropriste bonus / credit rate policy and a shitablé growth Sincome investment allacation,

Markef' risk arises from returns cbtained from investing the-shareholderst funds held in the Group, Appropriste investrnent
mandates are set by ALCO.for the mvestment of shareholders” funds. As at 31 December: 2018, sharehofders® funds in the Group
were invested 3% (30 June 20181%5) in growth assets {equity and-property} and 972 (30-June 2018 9995} 1n incorne assets, {cash
and Hxed.interest), '

Market risk c_ompri's_e__s three 1ypes. of risk: currency rigk, interast rate risk-and price risk,
(. Currency Risk

Currency-risk 1s the risk that the f&ir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign-
currency rates,

The Group does not fully hedie foreign currency denorinated squity instruments. Adverse movements Incurrency rates relating to
the New Zealand dollar will:subsequently réduce the value of palicyhalder assets and liatiifties.

The Graug uses foreiqn-cu_rrencv-fo_rWar’d.c_gntr_acts to ' mitigate its exposure-fo currency risk from: forieign c'iirrén_cy denominated
investments, Global.equity is-hedger within the Collective Investrrent Vehicle, (CIV}, Thé hedge ratio benchmark for Global Equities’in.
the CIV'is 100%, All éther equity.and property-investments denominated in foreign currency have g weighted. avérage hedging ratio

of 68% (30 June 2018 579%) and fixed intarest ifivestments denominated i a foreign currency have. @ hedging ratic of 100%, (30

Jore 20181009). Allinvestments denominated inemerging market currencres are: un'h'edged.

(i}  Interest Rate Risk
Interast réte risk i the risk that the fair value'or future cath flows of-a financizt instrument will fluctugte. hecause of thangss in
market interest rates,
Farr value interest rate r1sk anises fror the. potential for.a change-in' inferest rates to:cause a fluctuation in the fair: value of financiaf
instruments ‘and the value of life insurance contract fabilities. Interest rate risk arises from the dtructuie and characteristics of the.

Group's assets, liabilitfes and equity. and the mismatch in cash flows of ity assets-and liapifities. The: ohjective is to-manage the
intrest rate risk fo-achieve stable and ‘sustamnable net profit,

For fixad interest investments held to-match fixed intérest style'products selected by poiicyholders, the interest rate risk.is borne by
the pohcyholdeér,

Interest rate risk also arises oy [15}(_ca_n'tracts_ where negative policy habilities {arising from the deferral of -acguisition costs} are
valuéd at current risk-free interest rates.

C_ash fiow- inferest rate risk is the potentiai for 3 thange in interest rates té change inferest expense and interest incoma inthe-
current year and in future years,

The Group redisces interest rate risk by-seeking to match the, cash Tows of assets and liabilities.

Depending on the profile of the ifvestment portfolig, the investment income of the Group. vill decrease as interest rates-decrease,
This (n_av' be offset to an extent by changes. in the markst value of. fixed interpst investmants. The Irpact onprofit and shareholdei's
equity depends en the relative profiles of assets and tiavflities; to the extent that these are notmatched,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2018

3i Risk Management Policies (continued)
" ‘Market Risk (continued)

{5y Price Rlsk

Price risk is the risk that the f_aii'-va_lue_ o futiure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices:
(other than those ariing frofn interest rate risk o currency risky, whether those changes are.causad by factors, specific to the individuat
financial instrurnient or its issuer, or by factors affécting all simitar finandiat instruments fraded in'the market.

This risk is msnaged by ensuring a diverse range of investraents;- limits on-counterparty -exposure -and Fastrictions on’ types of
instruments.

Equity Prices

For life investmant contracts and e nsurance coniragts \vith_discretionary_ parfitipation fedtures, liabilties depend-on the vajue-of
underlying assets, Equity price r1sk may be entirely barne by policyholders. However, the Group derives fee income based on the value
of the underlying funds; hénce revenuas are always sensitive to changes in markét valie. For assels which are not contraciually Inked

to policy liabilities, the: Group.is exposed to gauity price risk.
‘Sensitivity to mariet risk
iarkiet riskis measuret by-using sensit_ivity--analy_sis'to-méclel changes In iriterest rates, equity valugs and forelgncurrency rates.

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of r'ep_ort_ed..p_roﬁt.and.ioss aftertax and equity to changes.in market risk assunmptions:

Harket risks

Equity prices  Favourable by 16% 2 1

_ Adverse by 10% ) W

Interast rates’  Increase.of 100 bps ) 3
Décreaseof 100 bps- {9 B

The.negative impact of a.decrease of 100bPS in interest rates is primarily sisoctated with participating product with guaranteed
benefits. ' '

32 Derivative Finaricial Instruments
The: Group entérs into derivative transactions .w_r_ﬂc_'h'_p_rq_v'ide'ecpnpmi: hedges for risk exposurés but do not meet _the accounting
requirements for hedge accounting treatment. The Group enters into: foreigh. curiency forward. contracts 'as economic hedges to
‘manage currency risk (refer note ¥fy. Gaing or Tossés on the forward contracts-have been: _r_ecc_a.rde'tf in investmént incorneg with' the
-gains-or losses onthe investments they have hedged.
The forward CUFrency Contracts tatked out do not exteed three ronths, At balance date these contracts have varying matufity dates.
Face and Fair Viatues

The face vatue s the cpntratt'ual--émount of the derivatives and provides a-basis for c'ompa'ri'sdn with instrumenits recognised in the:
Stat_ement-of'!-"inancial Position; This amaunt is not axchanged .and. does not indicate the Group's exposure té credit risg. The amount
predominantly acts as a reference valie upon-which fhe net settlements can be caldulated and on which revaluation is.based. The face
value of derivative: rinanc_Ia"I' instruments on hand: the favourable or unfavourable market values of these Instruments, and the

consequent aggregate fair values of derivative finanicial-assets and liabilities ¢an fuctuate significantly from time to Zime.

!
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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32 Derivative Financial Instriuments (continued)

The fair values of.derivative financisf instrurments helg are set outin the following table’

31 Deceniber 30 Jurie

§millions: < L

: L2018.7 © - 20187
Financial instruments subject to enforcaable master netting agreements
Forward contract assets _ 4
Total derlvatlve financial assots 4 B -
Forward contract iabilitles. (2) {4y
Total derfvative financial llabll_lﬂ_es 123 )
Tatal net derlvative flnanctal instruments + 2 4
Currency contracts face valua
Farward confract assets: 129 3
Forward contract liahilities 141 270

33 Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabifities

Asat 31 December 2018

Non-derivative finanicial Nabifities

Trade and other payables 16 95 - - - 5 116 18
Lifa investroent confracts 644 - - - o - 644 646
660 . 95 - - - 760 762
Derivative financial Habillties
Iiiflaws fram derivatives - 14 - - - - 151
Outflows. from dérivatives - (143) . - - = - (143)
' : 2 e T - .- )
As at 30 June 2018
Nonrderivative financial fabllities
Trade.and olher payables B 70. - - - 8 2] 81
Life investment.coniracts. . 692 - - .1 2 . 4 599 710
898 70 - L 2 - 780 791
Derlvative financial llabllities
inflows from derivatives - 143 - - - E 143
‘Outtiows from derivatives s {146} - . - P \C.5);
- 13} - - - - 3

The abipve analysis is based on tontractual undiseounted cash fiows, Where the counterparty has discration in requesting payment.
fiabilities ‘hava bean classified-according to the eadliest time périod-in which.the Group may be faquired to-pay. Refer to'note 31 for
getails of how-the Group rmanages Hglidity risk,

34 Funds Under Management and Administration

$644.muliion funds under managemnent and administration (30 June 2018 5707 milhon. The Group utiiises external fund managers and
nvestiment cansultanis'in theé manadement of these funds, ' )

The Group manages and doministers investrent praducts that are tlosed to new busingss, Asat 3i Dec_em_ber_-zo?_s,_ the Group had

=i
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Commitments and Contingencies.

Commitments.under operating leases
Total futUre aggregate minimum lease payments Unger non-canceliable are diselosed under note 26.

The Group is the lessee ivrespect of several properties and items of office equipmient held under operating leases. The laases-typically:

ruh for an initial perlod of one to six years, with an option.ta reneiw the fease whin.all terms are renegotiated. Lease ‘payments are
usuially reviewed at the end of the fease term to reflect market rates, None of the lzases include contingent rentals.

NZ FRS16 takas effect from 1 January 2019, Refer to Note'16n how NZ IFRS 16wl impact jedsing comrmtments.

Contingent Ligbilitles.

The Group 15 subject to regulation from insurance, securities, capital markets, pension, data privacy and ofhier requiators and is
exposed fe the nsk of regulatory actions in resporise to:perceived or achial non-compliance-vith regulatinns rekating to suitahilty,
sales or underwniting practices, claims paymentis and procadures, product design, disclosure, administration, dénial or defay of

benefits and breaches of fidutiary.of ather duties. THe Group believes that these matfers have been adequately proviged for in these.

‘financial statements.

The Groyg is exposed o' legal proceadings, gorplaints-and ather attions from its activities incluting those arising from commercial
activities, sales practices, suitability of products; policies and claims: The Group believes that these matters are adequately provided
for in these financial statemeants. ' ' N

AlA acquired the Group fror CBA with effect from 2 July 2018. As partof the sale agreement; the ‘Group enterad.inty a Transitional
Service Agreement with CBA, whereby CBA agreed to provide certain services to ths Group.until June 2019, As at 31 Decembar 2018
the Growup beligves that it may exétute the-option o extend the agreement, As atthe financial statefnent signing-date it is baleved'
that this would not have @ méterial financial impact on the Group.’ o '

There’are no:other known material capital commitments or contingent frabilities at reporting date, (30 June 2018 nitk
Events after the Reporting Period

SACL executed a new reinsurance agreement an 7 Jandary 2019 with an effective date of 3VDecember 2018 The impact of this new
reinsurdnce agreesrient on the profit of the Group is forecasted to be immaterial,

There were nd other events subseguent to the reporting pe__riqd which Would materially. affect the financlal statements.

i
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholder of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

o the income statement for the six month period then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the six month period then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the six month period then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the six month period then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a statement of significant accounting policies.

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements (financial statements) of
Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (the Company), including its subsidiaries (the Group), present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, its financial
performance and its cash flows for the six month period then ended in accordance with New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Bas jl S for o .-,F'f;_.'-, 1

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
NZ) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of assurance and agreed upon procedures
over the solvency return, other assurance services related to the acquisition of the Group on behalf of
the parent company auditor and agreed upon procedures related to reinsurance. The provision of these
other services has not impaired our independence as auditor of the Group. In addition, certain
partners and employees of our firm may deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary
course of trading activities of the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwe.com/nz
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Our audit approach

Overview

An audit is d'eéigned to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Overall Group materiality: $3.6 million, which represents approximately 1%
of average premium revenue for the past three July to December periods.

We chose average premium revenue because, in our view, it is a key
financial statement metric used in assessing the performance of the Group
and is not as volatile as other profit and loss measures, and is a generally
AnEiieogs accepted benchmark for life insurers. The 1% is based on our professional
judgement, noting that it is also within the range of commonly accepted
revenue related thresholds.

Ky canti We have determined that there are two key audit matters:

e Measurement of life insurance contract liabilities and associated
liabilities ceded under and arising from reinsurance

e Operation of financial reporting Information Technology (IT) systems
and controls

Materialits
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out above. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit, the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

We designed our audit by assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements and
our application of materiality. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls including among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the six month period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

arismg from reinsurance

As at 31 December 2018 the Group has life

insurance contract liabilities of $26
million (30 June 2018: $73 million),
liabilities ceded under reinsurance of $33
million (30 June 2018: $10 million) and
liabilities arising from reinsurance
contracts of $708 million (30 June 2018:
nil).

The Directors’ valuation of these balances
involves complex and subjective
judgements about future events, both
internal and external to the business, for
which small changes in assumptions can
result in a material impact to the
measurement of these balances.

We considered this a key audit matter due
to the subjective judgements made by the
Directors around the key actuarial
assumptions used in determining these
balances. These key actuarial assumptions
represent best estimate assumptions at
reporting date and includes:

¢ Expected amount, timing and
duration of all expected future
payments and premiums, likely rates
of discontinuance, mortality and
morbidity rates, investment and
maintenance expenses; and

e Long term economic assumptions
including discount rates and inflation
rate.

Further, the Directors perform a liability
adequacy test (at individual related
product group level) to ensure that any
deficiency in the measurement of life
insurance contract liabilities are
appropriately recognised at the reporting
date. This involves a comparison of the
amount of life insurance contract
liabilities against the estimated future
cash flows calculated based on best
estimate assumptions. Any deficiencies in

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Measurement of life insurance contract liabil

ities and associated liabilities ceded under and

Together with PwC actuarial experts, we:

Assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions including those for the amount,
timing and duration of all future payments
and premiums, rates of discontinuance,
mortality and morbidity rates, investment and
maintenance expenses, discount rates and
inflation rate. Our assessment of the
assumptions included:

©  Obtaining an understanding of, and
testing, the controls in place to
determine the assumptions;

o Examining the approach used by
management to derive the
assumptions by applying our industry
knowledge and experience; and

o Challenging the key assumptions used
by management against past
experience, market observable data
(as applicable) and our experience of
market practice.

Assessed the valuation methodologies used by
applying our industry knowledge and
experience to compare whether the
methodologies and changes to those are
consistent with recognised actuarial practices
and expectations derived from market
experience.

Checked the calculation of the liability
adequacy test and assessed the outcome in
order to ascertain whether the insurance
contract liabilities are adequate in the context
of a valuation on best estimate assumptions at
reporting date.

Policy data is a key input to the actuarial estimates.
Accordingly, we:

Evaluated the design effectiveness and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over
underwriting and policy administration
processes;



Key audit matter

arising from reinsurance

the measurement of life insurance contract
liabilities are recognised through the statement
of comprehensive income.

Refer to the following notes in the Group’s
financial statements: Note 1(k) for related
accounting policies, Note 1 for critical
accounting estimates and judgements, Note 2
and Note 18.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Measurement of life insurance contract liabilities and associated liabilities ceded under and

e Tested the completeness and accuracy of
data between source and actuarial
valuation systems; and

e Assessed a sample of premiums received
during the six month period to confirm
that they were supported by appropriate
documentation and approved within
delegated authority limits.

We have no matters to report from the
procedures performed.

Operation of financial reporting Information Technology (IT) systems and controls

We focused on this area because the Group’s
operations and financial reporting processes are
heavily dependent on IT systems, including
automated accounting procedures, IT dependent
manual controls and controls preventing
unauthorised access to systems and data.

The Group’s controls over IT systems include:

e The framework of governance over IT
systems;

e Program development and changes;

e Access to process, data and IT operations;
and

Governance over generic and privileged user
accounts.

Our procedures included evaluating and testing
the design and operating effectiveness of certain
controls over the continued integrity of the IT
systems that are relevant to financial reporting.

We also carried out direct tests, on a sample
basis, of system functionality that was key to our
audit testing in order to assess the accuracy of
certain system calculations, the generation of
certain reports and the operation of certain
system enforced access controls.

When we noted design or operating effectiveness
matters relating to I'T systems and application
controls relevant to our audit, we performed
alternative or additional audit procedures. This
involves a combination of the following
procedures:

e Testing mitigating controls;

e Investigating to determine that the
exception has not been exploited;

o Validating the appropriateness of
transactions associated with the
identified exception;

e Determining whether key programs
have changed during the period under
audit; and

e Increasing sample sizes for our
substantive test of details for the
relevant attributes.
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Information other than the financial statements and auc litor’s report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not, and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

\uditor’s responsibilities for the audit f the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

H ,’Jj'r ) e repor i [0

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder, for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.



The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent au

For and on behalf of:

QMELMQGD@

Chartered Accountants
18 March 2019

ditor’s report is Karl Deutschle.

Auckland



Appointed Actuary’s Report.

To the Directors of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited

This Appointed Actuary’s report under Section 78 of the Insurance (Prudential _
Supervision) Act 2010-(the Act) is prepared in respect of the financial statements of
‘Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (SACL) for the 6 month period ended 31
December 2018, '

I-have undertaken a review of the-actuarial information (as defined in ssction 77(4) of
1he Act) confained in, and used in the preparation of, the financial statements of
SACL (the Financial Statements) as required under section 77(1) of the Act..

My review has been carried out in accordance with the Salvency-Standard for Life.
Insurance Businesses issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under section'55.
of the Act (the Life Selvency Standard) and with the New Zealand Society of
Actuaries’ Professional Standards.

In respect of my review, | confirm as follows:

(a)

(b)

[, Marco Welgemoed FNZSA, am the appointed actuary for SACL unider
section 78(1) of the Act; and that [ have prepared this report.

The work that | have done to review the actuarial information contained in, or

used

0

(i)

in the preparation of the Financial Statements, includes a review of:

information relating to SACL’s calculations of premiums, claims, reserves,
dividends, insurance and annuity rates, andtechnical provisions:

information relating o assessments of the probability of uncertain futire
events cccurring and the finaricial implications for SAGL if those events

do oceur;

(iif}

{iv)

SACL's Policy Liability, as defined in the Life Solvency Standard;

reinsurance and other recovery assets relevant to the Policy Liability, or
relevant to outstanding ¢laims reserves incurred but not reported claims.

reserves held outside of the Pdlicy Liability:

(v)
(vi)

(vi)

{viii}

(ix)
)

(xi}

any deferred.or other tax asset relevant to'the Policy Liability:

any deferred acquisition cost or defered fee revenue relevant to.the
Policy Liability;

the unvested policyholder benefits liability;

the crediting and.bonus rates used for paiticipating and investment
account contraets;.

the-analysis of SACL's profit and the movement in the solvency margin;

the sensitivity of SAC)'s profit to changes in insurance and market risk
assumptions;

the assumptions used in the calculation of the Policy Liability and the

solvency margin and the impacts of changsés in.those assumptions;
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() the methodology used to calculate the Policy Liability and the Soivency
- Margin;

(xiii} the consistency between the New Zeala nd Society of Actuaries
Professional Standard 20 “Determination of Life Insurance Policy
Liabi lities”, SACL's valuation methodology document, and the calculated
Policy Liability; and

(Xiv) SACL's checks and controls over data, valuation and solvency calctiation
processes,

() lam anemployee of Sovereign Services Limited, a subsidiary of SACL. tdo
not have any other relationship with, or interests in, SACL or any of its
subsidiaries.

(d) 1have obtained all information and explanations that | have required in orderto
conduct my review under section 77 of the Act.

(e) | consider thatin my opinion and from an actuarial perspe‘ctive:-

(i)  the actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been
 appropriately included in those Financial Statements; and

(i) the actuarial information used in the preparation.of the Financial
Statements has been used appropriately.

(f)  lconsider that in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective SACL, as at 31
" December2018, is maintaining a solvericy margin that complies with that .
‘required under the Life Solvency Standard for the purposes of sectien 21{2)(b)
of the Act.

(g) ! consider that in riy opinion, and from an acfuarial perspective and as at 31
December 2018, SACL is-maintaining solvency margins that comply with those
required under the Life Solvency. Standard for the purposes of section 21(2)(c)
of the Act.

| have prepared, dated and signed this report solely in:my capacity as SACL’s.
appointed actuary under section 76(1) of the Act, To the fuilest extent permitted by
law, } d6 not-accept responsibility to anyone other than the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand, SACL, its Board and sharehalder forthe contents of this report.

“Dated (& Murch 2019

Marce Welgemoed
Appointed Actuary

Auckland
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